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1.

1.1.

INTRODUCTION
Background of RSSB

In.accordance with the Law n® 04/2015 of 11/03/2015 rhodifying and complementing Law n® 45/2010 of”
14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) and Law n°® 003/2016 of 30/03/2016
establishing and governing maternity leave benefits scheme; the laws détermining mission, organization
and functioning of Rwanda Social Security Board, the Board has a legal personality, administrative and
tinancial autonomy -and 1s governed in accordance with laws governing-organs of Public Institutions in
Rwanda. According to-article number 4 of the Law n° 45/2010 of 14/12/2010, RSSB' has the: following
responsibilitiés:

1.

2.

1000 4 O\ U

10.

i.2.

To manage and promote pension; medical insurance, insurance on ‘occupational hazards, insurance
on maternity leave, the anticipated old age pension and other necessary schemes;

to register employers, employees, beneficiaries and seif- insured persons in various schemes
-managed by RSSB;

to collect and manage contributions as provided by laws:
to receive.and manage donatiorns;

to pay benefits for ot to beneficiaries;

to make investments in accordance with laws;

to contribute to the elaboration of social security policy;

to-advise the G_o\_r'ernment on matters relating fo social security; _
to establish relations -and cellaborate with other regional -or international institutions with similar
missions;

‘to continue providing medical care for retirees who have merithly. pension benefits.

Supervising authority of RSSB

RSSB is supervised by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Planning.

1.3.
1.3.

Management organs of RSSB
1. Board of Directors

The Board of directors is responsible for providing governance and oversight over the management of
RSSB. The composition of the Board of Directors as.at 30" June 2020 was as follows:

NAMES Role on the board

Mr TURAHIRWA Ephrann o i Chaitperson

Mrs. KANYANGEYO Agnes Vice Chalrperson

Mr.KABERA Godfrey ' it Meimber

Prof. NZAMURAMBAHO Manasseh .

Mrs TENGERA KAYITARE Francoise  ° Member

Mrs. DUSHIMIRE Alice Member

Mrs. KARAKE Doréen: T Mémber

Subsequent to the year end on 10 September 2020, a new board of directors was appointed and is as
follows:

NAMES L N + Rale on the board

‘Dr Christopher John WALES o Chairpersen

Mr, Marcel MUKESHIMANA """ 7icé Chairperson
Prof. Senait FISSEHA - Member
Mr. Patrick MARARA SHYAKA ' Member

‘Mr. Kephers USENGE _ ' Member-

Ms. Liliane BWAKIRA i Member

Dr. Violette AYINGENEYE Member

‘Mr, Yves GATSIMBANY] ' ' o | Member

Mr, Alain NDAYISHIMIYE ' ‘Member




1.3.2. General Directorate

The day to day running- of RSSB is entrusted to the managetnent team headed by the Director General.
The Director General is.assisted by two (2) Deputies: Deputy Director General in ¢harge of Benefits and
Deputy Director General” in charge of Fund Management. Officers who served on. the General
Directorate for the year ended 30™ June 2020 were as follows:"

NAMES _ _ POSITION ' _
"Mr TUSABE Richard Director General, Rwanda Social Security | Left 26 Feb 2020
! Board i _
Mr. RUGEMANSHURO Regis Director Generai% Rwanda Socnal Secunty Joined 27" Feb 2020
~ Board
Mr RWAKUNDA Christian | Deputy Dlrectormalé'ﬁeral in charge of F und ‘Left 26tll Feb. 20"0
L .+ Management
Mr GACANDAGA Jean Marie | Deputy Director General in charge of Fund | Joined. 27" Feb 2020
o { Management’
Dr Solange HAKIBA ITULINDE | Deputy Director General in charge of- Lefton 11" May 2020
: Benefits:
Dr. HITIMANA Regis- Deputy Director General in charge of | Joined 12" May 2020
" Benefits
Mr MURINDABIGWI Innocent | Head of Finance and -Contributions
'_ Depaitment

Mr GASANA KWIZERA Eric |

Head ‘of Investment Department.

Mr RULISA. Alexis “Head of CBHI Department
MrMUNYANDEKWE Oswald | Head of Pension and Occupatlonal Hazards Left 117 March 2020
department _
MUJAWAREGA: Yvonne Head of Pension and Occupatlonal Hazards' Joined 12" March 2020
- ... department _
: Dr RURANGANWA Dlane + Head of Medical Department Left-on 3" May 2020
Dr UMUTESI Lysette. 1 Head of Medical Department Joined on 6" May 2020 |
1.4.  Registered office
! Rwanda Social Security Board Headquarters
RSSB Building
_ Plot 1003 Ubumwe Cell,
-Z African Union Boulevard
Kiyovu, Nyarugenge
POBOX 250/6655 Kigali
. Email: Info@rssb.rw
Toll Free line:4044
"The Auditor General
‘Office of the Auditor General for State Finances

Kimihurura avenue du Lac Muhazi. NEC, OAG, RRA Complex:
B.P 1020, _
Kigali- Rwanda




1.6. Bankers
Bank of Kigali Limited
PO BoxI75

Kigali, Rwanda

I.& M Bank Rwanda Limited.
P O Box 354
Kigali, Rwanda’

National Bank of Rwanda
PO Box 331
Kigali, Rwanda

Bank Populairé du Rwanda Limited

P O Box 1348
Kigali, Rwanda

-Ecobank Rwanda Limited
P O Box 3268
Kigali, Rwanda

KCB Rwanda Limitéd
P OBox 5620
Kigali, Rwanda

Unguka Bank Ple Rwanda
P.O BOX: 6417 Kigali.
Kigali; Rwanda

Letshege Rwanda Limited
P.0. Box 4062
Kigali, Rwanda

'NCBA. Bank Rwanda PLC

Kigali Heights, 8th Floor, Boulevard de I'Umuganda

P O Box 6774, Kigali, Rwanda

Investment advisors for Ejo Heza

Rwanda National Investment Trust Ltd (RNIT)

1.7. Our Vision, Mission and Core Values

Our Vision

GT Bank (Rwanda) Limited
P O Box 331
Kigali, Rwanda

Access Bank (Rwanda) Liiited
PO-Box 2059 '
Kigali, Rwanda.

Zigama Credit and Saving Society
PO Box 4772
Kigali; Rwanda

‘Development Bank of Rwanda Limited

P.O Box 1341
Kigali; Rwanda

Cogebanque Limited

P.O.Box 5230

Kigali; Rwanda

‘Equity Bank Rwanda Limited:
P O Box 494

Kigali, Rwanda

-AB Bank Rwanda Limited

P.O Box 671,

Kigali, Rwanda

Bank of Affica
P.O. Box 265,

Kigali-Rwanda

*To envision a comprehensive social security system that addresses the sécial security' needs’ of all

Rwandahs®

Our Mission

“To -provide high quality social security services, ensure efficient collection. benefits: provision,
management and investment of members’ funds.”

Our Core..('C-_orpqrate') Values

In trying to achieve our vision and mission, we sérve with -empathy, creativity, integrity and
determination by following the [CARE principles:

» Integrity

s Collaboration

¢ Accountability




¢ Respect

s Excellence.

The ‘Directors- submit their réport together with the auditéd fihancial statements for the year ended 30

June 2020 which discloses the state of affairs of Rwarnda Social Security Board (RSSB).

1.8.  Establishment

RSSB was established and is governed by Law N° 04/2015 of 11/03/2015, law modifying and

complementing Law n® 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda Social Secutity Board (RSSB) and.

determinirig its mission, organization and functioning. RSSB-was-established after a review of Law No.

60/2008 of 10/09/2008 determining the responsibilities, organization and functioning of Rwanda Social

Security Beard and Law No 27/2007 of 27/06/2007 determining the responsibilities, organization and:

funetioning of a health imsurance scheme for employees.

1.9.  Principal activities

In aceardance with Law N° 04/2015-0of 11/03/2015, RSSB was establishied with four schemes.

e Under the pension scheme, RSSB collects contributions from employers and employges in Rwanda
and provides benefits to pensioners, invalids and other beneficiaries.

. Under'the_ medical schemte,, RSSB-'_provi'des medical insurarice services.

»  Under CBHI scheme, RSSB provides community-based heaith insurance scheme and by the same
law the CBHI has been operating from July 2015.

. Und_er'Mate;miW Leave Beneﬁt_s-_S_c_heme', RSSB provides maternity leave insurance services and has
beer operating since 1* November 201 6.
» A new regulation — Prime Minister Order No.58 of 4/04/2018 - Determining the administrator of the
Long term savings scheme appointed RSSB as the administrator of the Long term saving scheme.
Accordingly, this regulation introduces a new scheme to RSSB.

Membership of the defined benefit fund

‘a) Total members at 30 June 2020 2019
Contributing members 587,576 553,876
Pensioners 41,483 41,474
Deferred members 926,861 346,907
1,555,920 1,442,257
b) Contributing membérs
At start of year 553,876 472,560
Joinets 145.775 106,503
699,651 579,063
Less:
Retired {with pension or lumpsum) 3,578 3,365.
Secessions (withdraw) 108,497 21,822
Atend of year 587,576 553,876
¢) Pensioners
At start of the year 41,474 39,761
Contributing members who retired with pension 2,353 1,975
Widows or widowers’ pensicn and orphans becoming payable 1,187 2,500
Members who.got lump sum 1,225 1,390
46,275 45,626
Less: Deaths and other secéssionists 4.756 4.152
At-end of year 41.483 41,474



Membership-of the Workers® Medical Insurance
Active members
Affiliates.
Dependents
Total

Membership of the Community Based Health Insurance

‘Population coverage
‘Target population
Active contribitors
‘Coverage rate

Memb’ership of the Maternity Leave Benefits Schieme.

Contributors

Number of beneficiaries.
Membership of Ejo Heza Stheme

Contributors

Wumber of beheficiaries

2020

166,273
366.024
532.297

2020
11,841,787
9,443,124
79.7%

2020
347 470

2019
148,499

2019
11,557,111
9,071,514
78.5%

2020
587,576
6,906

2019
14,263




‘2. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS? RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible. for- the preparatlon of financial statements that give a true and fair
view of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) compnsmg the statement ‘of finaficial position as
at 30 June 2020, diid the statements of comprehiensive income, changss in Member funds and
reserves and cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a sunmimary of sighificant accounting policies and other explanatory nofes as set out on pages
9 to 155, in accordance with Intetnational Finaricial Repoiting Standards (except as noted 4 (2) —
Basis. of accountmg) -and in the manner requlred by the provisions of the Law n° 04/2015 of
11/03/2015 modifying and complementing Law n® 45/2010 of 14/12/201.0 estabhshmg Rwanida Social
Security Board (RSSB).

The Directors™ responsibility includes the maintenance of accounting records that may berelied upon in
the preparation of financial statements, overseeing and endorsing the designing, 1mp1ementmg
and maintenance of internal control relevant 1o the preparation and fair presentation of these
ﬁnanclal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applymg appropriate accounting policies; ‘making accounting -estimates that aré reasonable in'the
circumstances and is.also responsible for safe guarding the assets of the Board.

‘The Directors have made dn assessment of the ability of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) to

continue as going concern and have no reason.to believe that the. business will not be'a going .concern in
the year ahead from the date of this statement.

In our opinion, the financial statements of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) for the year eénded
30 June 2020 give a.true and fair view of the. state of fifancial affairs of Rwanda Social Security
Board (RSSB). We further accept responsibility for maintenance of dccounting records that may
be relied upon in the preparation of findncial statements and ensuiing adequate system of internal
controls to safeguard-assets of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB).




3. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M 3.1. Statement of comprehensive income
2020 2019
- Notes Frw Frw
: (in millions)  (in miilions)
Dealings with iembers
— Contributions 9. 212,959 181,025
: Benefits paid 10 (112059) (104:007)
Net additions frori dealings with members 100,900 7018
; Returns:on investments
Investment income il 58,710 54,540
Change in fair valoe of financial assets at fair value-through profit :
~ PN ! ! 12 2.118 .
: of loss (803)
Change in fair value of investment properties 13 78,595 -
Write back of prior year - 1,343
- Realized (loss)/gain on disposal of assets 14 392 521
' Less: investment management expenses 15 (2.015) {1,501)
Net veturns on investments 137:800 54,101
Grants Y 27,795 27.976
- Other income. 17 1,165 1.936
Expenditures
- Staff costs 18 12,217) (10,102)
Administrative expenses 19 (6,543) (7.458)
Depreciation -and amortization charge 20 (1.450) (1,476)
™ Other expenses 21 {4.459) (3.689)
Total expénses’ (24,669) {22,725)
™ Net income fot the year 242,991 138,306
Other comprehensive income
i Revaluation gain on property and equipment (administrative 4ssets) 22 2,587 0
Increase in net assets for the year 245,578 138,306
_: ™ The notes on pages 14 to 155 form an integral part of these financial statements.




3.2. Statement of financial position

2020 2019
Notes Frw Frw
(in millions) (in millions)
Assets

Property and equipment 23 13,166 11,454
Intangible assets 24 1,973 957
Investment properties 25 218,362 125,796
Investment properties in the process of construction 26 7.684 5,307
Assets held for sale 27 - 454
Equity investments 28 478,443 416,007
Corporate bonds 29 24754 .
Treasury bonds 30 133.936 88.540
Treasury bills 3l 54,323 120,224
Commercial papers 3 14.715 16,145
Loan and advances to third parties 33 41,322 41,259
Mortgage loans 34 63 147
Inventory 33 361 296
Advances to coniractors 36 8.808 9,205
Dividend and other income receivable 37 1.258 4,583
Other assets 38 6,200 5.878
Due to/(Due from) other schemes 39 g -
Deposits with financial institutions 40 291,273 231.302
Cash and bank balances 41 89,311 ___ 85066
Total assets 1.406.153 1.162.618

Less: Liabilitics
Amounts retained on construction contracts 946 631
Benefits payable 26,541 24212
Other payables 42 (a) 12,086 16,756
Deferred income 42 (b 691 _ &30
Total liabilities —40.263 —42.430
Net assets available for benefits L365,890 1,120,188

Represented by:
Capital 1,232 1,232
Retained eamnings and Accumulated member lunds 43 653.064 580,859
Ejo Heza member funds 43 4,119 104
Revaluation reserve 44 7.093 4.506
Fair value reserve 45 97,613 16,900
Statutory reserves 46 _602.768 _516.586
Total reserves and member funds 1.365.890 1,120,188

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 16" March 2021 and signed on its

behalf by £ N ~
(i W

Regis RUGEMANSHURO DrChristopher John WALES
Director General Chairperson — Board of Directpf

The notes on pages 14 to 155 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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3.4. Statement.of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities:

Inctrease in net assets for the year
Adjusted for:

Depreéiation and amortization
Investmient income

Realized loss-on disposal of assets (equity investments, PPE,
Assets held for sale and Investment properties)

Change in fair value.of equity investments.

‘Change in fair value of investsiient properties.

Wiite back of prior fiir value loss

Unrealised foreing exchange loss

Government grants

Adjustment of opening balances

In-kind expenditure

In-kind income

Operating income for changes in working eapital

(Increas_é)(Déc_rease"_in advance-to contractor§.
{Increase)Decreasé in other asséts

(Increase)/Decrease in inventory

Increase/(IDecrease) in medical/materriity claims payables

Increase/(Decrease) in other payablées
Inereasef/{Decrease) in coritract reténtions:
Net ¢ash flows from. operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities:

Dividend income received

Rent réceived

Other interest income teceived (current accounts, call deposit
and mortgage loans)

Purchases for investment property under construction
Purchase of property and eguipment

Purchase of intangible asset

Purchase of investment properties

Purchase of equity investments

Proceeds from disposal of Equity investments.

Purchase of Corporate bonds

Receipts from settlément of Corporate bonds (Interest and
principal)

Receipts: fronn'Trea;':“.ury bond - coupon interest income
received

Receipts from Treasury bill. maturities (Interest and principal)

Receipts from ‘Commercial papers maturities (principal and
interest) '

investment in Treasury bonds

Investment in‘Treasury bills

2020
Frw
(millions)

242,991

1,450
{58,710}

(392)

(2,118)
(78,595)
158
(27,064)
{63)

648
77,574

397
519
(65)

2,328
(4.671)

315
76,396

5.967
4,446
3,070

{3.217)
(408)y
(1,396)
(17,121)
(59,926)

_{24-_'-,_0'00)"

20,463.

137,201

17,486

(71,469)
(64,747).

2019
' Fr\_\'
{(millions)

138,306

1,476
{34,540)

(521)

‘803

0
(1,343)
(26,343)
0

1,585
(1.633)
57,789

(1,145)

(1,639)
(75)

(901)
7,578
(61)
61,546

4,113
4,536
4,803
{4,403)
9
(669)
(5.861)
{62,362)

2,795
2,806

13,477
171,613

39,988

(39,608)
(219,899)

12




Investment in Commercial papers
Receipts from settlement of loans-and advances to third
parties

Additional loans and advances to third parties during the year-

Increase/{Decrease) in mortgages

Placement of term deposits during the ygar

Settlernent of term deposits during the year
{Increase)/Decrease in-call deposit

Refund of prior year purchase of Investment properties -
Rusorero plots

Proceeds from disposal

Net cash used in ifivesting activities

Cash flows frem financing activities:
Govemmen_t_ -g_ran_ts. '
Government grants refunided

Ineréase in ¥nidentified member contributions
Net cash from findncing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and.cash equivalents at t July
Cash-and cash equivalents at 30 June

(14,520)
9,937

(10,000)
90
(293,898)
258,748

2,135

__1.873
(99,284)

27,340
(332)
124
27,132

4,245
85.066
89,311

The notes on pages 14 to 155 form an integral part of these financial statemetits.

(37.828)
4,477
(26,247)

159
(195.752)
218,422

0

1,508

(124,028)

26,746
0

15
26,761

(35,721)
120,787
85,066

13
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4, _N.O_TES'..T'O_ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Reporting entity

Rwanda Social Security Board was established by Law n° 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda
Sacial Security Board (RSSB) as modified and complemiented by Law n®04/2015 of 11/03/2015 and Law

n° 003/2016 of 30/03/2016 establishing and governing maternity leave benefits scheme. The Board ruris

the following schemes under one management:

=  Pensionscheme

= Medical scheme

*  Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme
= Maternity Leave scheme:

»"  Long term savings scheme (Ejo Heza): Prime Minister Order No,38 of 4/04/2018 - Determining the
-administrator of the Long term' savings scheme appointed. RSSB as the administrator of the Long term
‘saving scheme.

2. Basis of accounting

a) Statement of compliance

The - financtal statements of the Board have been prepared. in accordance with International Financial
Reportmg Standards {IFRS), as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB). These are
separate financial statements and. are not consolidated, -as, would be required by IFRS 10: Consolidated
Fmancial Statements, in respect. of the investees-aver which the Board exercises control. The directors, in
their judgment believe - that despite this. deviation, the financial statements. prowcle reliable and useful
information to its stakeholders.

Under paragraph 4B of TFRS 10, a parent entity that is an Investment entity is exempt from consolidation if
that entity measures-interests in subsidiaries at fair through profit or loss, Paragraph 27 of IFRS 10 requires
a parent entity to determme if'it is an investment entity. An investment entity isan entity that:

1), Obtains furds from' one of more investors for the purpose- of providing those investor(s) with
- investment management services;
2) Commits to its investor(s) that its business. purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and
3} Measures and evaludtes the performance of substantially all of its. investments on a fair valde basis.

Accordingly, the directors have determined RSSB to be an investment entity as its mandate includes the
management of funds on behalf of contributing 1 members to.ensure the following;

1) Colleets and invests funds contributed by fund members providing investment management services
over investments made on behalf of contributing members with aim of ensuring that long term fimd
obligations to contributing members are met as and when they fall due.

2} Commits to contributing members to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation ar both
3) And measures the performance of substantially all of its investments-on a fair value basis.

Thie directors have thus chosen to apply the exemption from consolidation under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10
and to-account for RSSB interests in entities that qualify to be subsidiaries at fair-value through profit or
loss.




It addition, under paragraph 18 of IAS 28, wheri an investment in an dssociate or a joint venfure is held by,
or is held indirectly through, an entity that is a vénture capital organisation, or'a mutual fund, unit trust-and
similar entities including investment-linked insirance funds, the entity may elect to ineasure investnients.in
those associates and joint veritures at fair value through prof' it or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. RSSB as
an ifvvestment entlty has elected to measure-its-associates and joint véntures at fair-value through profit or
loss, The companies in whichi the Board has interests/shareholding and a summary of their key financial
data are disclosed in note 28 to-these financial statements,

IFRS 9- Financial instruments

RSSB: has not adopted IFRS 9 in the preparation-and. presentation of these financijal statements, IFRS 9
which was effective. for accounting periods beginning on or atter 1 Jamiary 2018. RSSB is in'the process of
assessing the impact of adopting [FRS 9 ori its findncial statéments,

b) Basis for measurement

The financial statements ‘are prepared under the hiistorical cost basis.except where otherwise-mentioried in
the policy notes. Financial assets.including -equity investments designated at fair value through profit or
loss, investment properties, land and buildings and assets held for sale have been measured at fair value.

3. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements afe presented in Rwanda.francs (Frw), which is the Board’s functional currency
and all values are presented in millions (‘000,000), except where otherwise indicated.

4. Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect. the appllcanon of the Board’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of ‘assets, liabilities,
income and ekpenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assuniptions are reviewed-on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in'whichi the estimate are revised and in any future periods affected.

5.. Significant accounting policies

Significant dccounting policies set out below. havé‘been applied consxstently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

ay Members’ funds

The Board is funded thiough contributions from- members and investment income. Contributions are
accoumed for as follows:

(7] Conmbuﬂons. fr'om niermnbers.

Contributions from employees remitted by the employers are recognized on a cash-basis. Contributions-due.
but not yet received at the end of the financial year are not accrded. They aré-accourited for and. recognized
in subsequent yéars when teceived. ‘The contributions remitted by employers for Pension, edical and
maternity-on based on the respective laws for pension, medical and maternity schiemes. ‘Contributions for -
CBHI are remitted directly by the beneficiaries and from other sources of income as defined by the law.

(i1} Benefit payinesits to members

15




Benefits to members are accounted for on a cash basis. Benefit payments made but ‘not collected by
metnbers are written back in the cash book and no liability thereof recognized in the financial statements.

(tif})  Actuarial valuction

The ¢urrent actuarial valuation exercise was-ongoing and had not been concluded by the time of these;
financial statements The available actuarlal valuation covers the period up 30 June 2016 for the pension;
occupationa) hazards and medical benefit insurance schemes. See details in note 49.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is récognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits witl flow to the Boardand
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Re\« enue is: measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into-account. contractually defined terms
of payment. The fo]lowmg spec1ﬁc recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

(i} Interestincome

For all finan¢ial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest incoriie or expense is recorded using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discourits the estimated future cash payments or.
receipts through the expected life of the financial:instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to.the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

(i} Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividends is established.

(iii} Rentalincame

Rental income from investment properties is recognized in the statement of comprehensive on the straight
line basis over the term of the property lease.

(v} Other income
Other income comiprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and-includes gains from
disposal of Board’s assets and all realised and unrealised foreigi exchange differences..

¢} Foreign curirencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the’year are translated into Rwanda francs at the exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign.cuirencies at the.
reporting date -are translated into Rwandan francs at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities. denominated in foreign currencies that -are ‘measured at fair value are translated to
Rwandan francs at the date 'wher the. fair value.was determined. Forei gn.currency gains and losses arising
from translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the yéar. '

d) ‘Financial instruments —initial recognition and subsequént measurement
IFRS 9 was effective 1 January 2018 and has changed the classification of financial instruments and

impairment: model for financial assets, from.incurred loss model to expecied credit toss model. However,
the Board has not adopted IFRS 9.in preparation of these financial statements.

The accounting policies applied for financial instruments are as detailed below:




(i) Financial assets
Initial recognii‘ion and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of JAS 39 are classified as financial assets-at fair vatue through profit or
loss, loans arid receivables, held-to-maturity investmients, available-for-sale financial assets; or as
derivatives designated @ hedging instturments in an effective hedge -as ‘appropriate. The Board determines
the: classification of its financial assets.at initial recogrition. All financial assets are recognised initially at
fair value plus, in the case of invéstments not at fair value through profit or loss; directly attributable
transaction costs. The Board’s financial assets include. cash. and cash eq_uivalents_,_. trade and other
receivables, loans and advances, deposits with commercial banks, investments: in . government and
corporate bonds.and equity investments.

Subsequent measurenient

The subsequent measurement of financial asséts depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets designated upon initial
fecognit'i{m at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. are
carried in-the-statement of financial position at.fair value with changes in fair value recognised in surplus
or deficit, These include equity investments designated at fair value through profit or loss by the Board,

Financial assets held for tradisng

Finaricial assets held for trading include securities held for trading which are equity investments held by
investment managers. Financial assets held for tradlng are carried in the statement:of financial position at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in surplus or deficit. These include equity invesfiments
designated as held for trading by the Board.

Loans and advinces

Loans. and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in.an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amo_rtl__s_ed_cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR), less impairment: Amortised cost 1s.calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition.and fees or costs that are'an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR. amortisation is. included .in interest income in the statement of compreliensive income.
The losses arising froin iinpairment are recognised in impairment lésses in the statement of comprehensive
income. These include loans and advances to Government entities and staff loans and advances.

Held-to-maturity investments

Naoni-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinablé payments and fixed maturities are classified as
held-to-maturity ‘when the Board' has the positive intention .ard -ability to hold them to maturity. After
initial measurement, held-to-matutity ‘investmients. are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any- discount or-
premium on acqulsltlon and fees. or costs that are-an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included in inferest incomie in the statement of comprehensive itcome. These inclide treasuty bonds,

treasuty bills, corporate bonds,.commetcial papers and terin deposits with financial inistitutions.

Other receivables
Other teceivables are carried at amortised cost which approximatés the original invoice. amount less
provision made for impairment losses. An allowance for impairment of other receivables is established

when there is objective evidence that'the Board will n6t be able to collect all amourits due according to the
original terms of receivables.
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De=recognition
A financial asset (ar, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Board of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from'the asset liave eXpired.

» The Board has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from'the asset or has-assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material defay to-a third party under a “pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Board has transfeired substantially all the risks and rewards 6f the asset,
or (b) the Board has neither tratisferred nor retained substantially all the risks-and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When-the Board has transferred its rights to-receive cash flows from an asset or has entéred into a pass-
through arrangemient, and has neither transferfed. nor retained substantially.all of the risks and réwards of
the asset nor transferred sontrol-of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Board’s continuing
involvément in the asset. In that case, the Board dlso recognises an -assdciated liability. The transferred
asset and the. associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the. rights and obligations that the
Board has retained.

it)  Impdirmient of financial assets

The Board assesses at each reporting date whether-there is any objective evidence that a financial.asset or a.
group of financial -assets is .impaired. A financial ‘asset or a"group of financial assets is deemed to be.
impaired if, and only if; there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of onie or more events that has

occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incuired ‘loss event’) and that loss évent has an impact

on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial asséts that can be rellably
estimated. Evidence -of impairment may include. indications that the debtors -or a group of debtors ‘is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the.
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganisation ‘and where observable data
indicate that thete-is 2. measurable decrease in the estimated future cash.flows, such:as changes in arcears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial.assets carvied at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the. Board first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financiai asséts that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets. that.are not individually si gmﬂcant If the Board determmes that no objective evidence of
impairment -exists. for an individuaily assessed financial asset, whether stgmfic_ant._or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar-credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment, Assets that are mcllwclually assessed for 1mpa1rment and- for which an impairment loss is, or
continues o be, rccogmsed are not included ina.collective assessmerit of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as-the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash. flows
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The ‘present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted ‘at the financial asset’s orlgmal effective interest rate. If a loan has a
variable interest rate, the discount tate for measuring any. impairment loss is the current effective initerest
rate.

The carryi'ng amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the
loss is recogmsed in surplus or-déficit. Interest income continues to be- accrued on the reduced carrying
amiount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows: tor the purpose of -
measuring the impairment loss, The interest income is recorded. as part of finance income in the statement
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of comprehensive income. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when- there is o
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to-the Board
If, in a subsequent year, the amount of‘the estimated impairment loss incréases or decreases because: of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously tecognised impairment loss. is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account: 1f a write-off is recovered in the future, the
recovery is credited to other income in the statement of comprehensive income.

i} Financial abilitiés
Initial recognition and measurement
Atinitial recognltlon ‘the Board measures finaneial liabilities:at initial recognition at tair value, plus, in the

casg-of a financial liability not at fais value through prof' 1t or loss.such as loans.or borrowings, transaction
costs that are directly attributable fo the acquisition or issue of the financial liability.

-Subsequent measurenent

Subsequently after initial recognition, finanicial liabilities are ineasured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.excluding financial liabilities through profit or loss, financial liabilities that arise when.a
transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de- recogmtmn of when the continuing improvement
-approach applies, financial: guarantee contracts as defined in pargraph 9 of IAS 39, commitments to
provide a loan. at below market intérest rate and finanicial liabilities that are’ de31gnated as hedge items
‘which are subject to hedge accounting requirements. Financial liabilities liave been subsequently measured
as follows:

Medical payables.

Medical payables mclude payables’of inedical ¢laims by registered medical service providers and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains and losses on dé-recognition and amortisation are
recognised in surplus or deficit,

Maternity leave payables:

Maternity payables include payables to. employérs reimbursing them for employer social security
‘contributions for the third month of maternity leave granted 1o employees and are subsequently measured-
at amortised cost. Gains and losses on de-recogriition and amortisation are recognised in surplus-or deficit.

Amounts retained on constriction contiaets

These are contractual amounts retained .on payments to construction suppliers. They are reimbursable. to
contractors after the final handover of construction projects. to the. Board subject to terms and conditions.
regarding uncorrected defects during the defects liability period.

Other accounts pavable

Other accounts payable are carried at amortised cost, which approximates the consideration to. be paid in.
‘the future for goods and services received,

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or-
expires:
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iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an inieiition to settle
on.a net basis, or realise the asset and settlé the Hability simultaneously.

v) Fairvalue of financial instruments

The Beard ‘measurés ‘financial ‘instruments such ‘as financial assets, and non-financial assets such as
investment propertiés, at fair value at-each reporting date. Fair value refated disciosures for financial
instriiments’ and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value o where fair values are disclosed, are
suminarized in the following notes:

¢ Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions - Note 7
*  Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy —Note 7
*  Financial instruments (including those cartied at amortised cost) — Note 7

‘The fair value- of firiancial instruments thiat are traded in active markets at each reporting date is determined

by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short posmons), without-any deduction of transaction costs

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using ‘appropriate
valuation techmques Such techmques may include using récent arm’s lengtli market transactions;
reference to the current fair value of -another instrumient that is substantially thie same; a discounted cash
flow analysis or other valuation models.

¢) Equity Investmerts

Under IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements, when separate financial statements are prepared, an entity.

“accounts for investments in subs:dlanes associates and joint ventures either at;

—  Cost.
— In.accordance with 1AS 39/IFRS 9, or

— Using the equity method described:in TAS:32

As.an investment entity under IFRS 10, RSSBis. expected to measure and :evaluate the performance of
substantially all of its investments on a. fair value basis. RSSB also elected to. measure investments in
associates and joitit ventures af fair vatue through proﬁt or Joss, Accordingly, all equity investments are

accounted for-on- fair value basis. The classification for the Tespective investments have been done in

accordance with IAS39, The ‘measurement of fair value was determined in accordance with IFRS 13: Fair.

-value measurement;

For the purpose of these financial statements, the Board has measured all equity investiments (except those
that are publicty listed and equity inveéstmerits in preference shares) using the net asset valuafion method.

testricted to the shareholding of RSSB in the respective investments. The directors believe that this basis.of

valuation provides the most relevant éstimate of the worth of these investments..

1)  Property and equipment

Initial recognition ahd measurement’
Property and equipment is initially recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditures” that -are directly’
attributable to-the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed asséts includes the cost of materials




and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a workmg condition for its
iritended use, and the costs of dlsmantlmg and removing the items and restoring the site-on which they are
located. Purchased software that is. integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property-and equipment is recognized in the: carrying value of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Board and
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying value-of the replaced part is de-recognised. Thie cost of day
to day servicing of the property-and equipment is recognized in the profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement

IAS 16 permits .an accounting entity to choose the cost or Tevdluation model as ifs accounting, poticy for
subsequent measurement of property and equipment. The accounting standard requires the acconnting
entity to-apply the chosen model consistenily across.a class of: propetty and equipment.

The Board hads chosén the revaluation model forthe class of land and buildings and the cost model for the
Test of the classes of propeity and equipment i.e. office-equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and fittings,
computers, Jaboratory and kitchen equipmerit,

- Revaluation model

Land and buildings are. subsequently measured at revalued amounts. It is the policy of the Board to revalue
assets under the class of tand and buildings every five. years to determine their fair values (revalued
amounts). Revalued amounts. of assets: determined at revaluation are compared to.-carrying values and are
written up or down to match revalued amounts. Accordingly, the resultant, revaluation sur plus or deficit is
recognised as part of other comprehensive income. during ‘the ‘year. of revaluation .and accumulated under
the revaluation reserve. Assets are then subsequently mieasured at révalued amourits less accumulated
depreciation until the next revaluation or until-de-recognition of the asset.

- Cost-model

Other classes of assets excluding land and building. are measured subsequently at cost less accumuldted
depreciation.

Depreciation expense

_Depreciation is recogmzed in the -statement. of ‘comprehensive: income and calculated to ‘write off the
cost/revalued amounts of the. property’ and equipmeiit on a sfraight line basis over the expected usefil lives
-of the assets concerned. Land. is not depreciated. The estimated depreciation rates for the current and
comparative periods are-as follows:

Class Depreuatmn rate
.Buﬂdmé;‘. : s e — g —— - : A

O ff'ce.eq_mp_men_t o S p— . : - . : S 505 enit
‘Motor vehicles o . ' T35
“Furniture and Ottings r— - T . _ ._ _ I 0%
.Computers T _ T — . 33.33%
“Kitckien equzpmcnt | . T— . T 25%
-Laboratory equipment o ' ' - o LT

Management and-directors review the depreciation.methodls, residual value and useful life of an'asset‘at the
year end and any change considered to_be appropriate is recorded in' surplus: or deficit as a change in
estimates.
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De-recognition

Assets are de-récognised through disposal at sale or Board approved write off. Gains and losses on disposal
of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds: from disposal with the
carrying value of property :and -equipment and recognized -net within other income in profit. or loss. At
disposal of revalued assets, the revaluation surplus of revalued assets is transferred from.the revaluation
reserve to retained éarnings.

g) Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired-separately are ineasured on initial recogmtlon at cost. Following initial recognition,
intahgible assets are cartied at -cost less any: accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, Intangible assets with finite lives are arnortised over the useful economic life and assessed. for
impairment whenever there 1§ an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Amortisation

The amortisation period and the aortisation method for an. intangible asset with a_ finite. useful life are
reviewed ‘at least at each financial year end. Changes. in the expected useful Tife or the expected pattern of
consumption of fliture -economic benefits embodied in the asset are: accounted for by -changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated .as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on. mtang1ble assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income in the expense catégory consistent with the finction of the intangible asset, There are no: intangible
assets with indefiriite useful lives. Intangible assets are amortised at a rate of 50%.

De-recognition

Gains or losses aﬁs_in_g from de-recognition of an intangible asset are meastred as the difference: Bet_Ween_.the_
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and ar¢ recognised in the statemert of
comprehensive income-when the asset is derecognised.

h) Investment properties
Initigi reeo grition:
Investment properties- are measured 1n1t1ally at cost, mc]udmg transaction costs. The carrying amount.

includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at-the time that cost is-incurred if the-
recognition criteria are.met and excludes the costs of day=to-day servicing of ‘an investment property.

Subsequent measirement

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, whi¢h reflects market
¢onditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the ratr values ‘of investment.
properties are included in surplus or deficit in the period in which they arise. Fair values are evaluated
every after five years by an accredited external, independent valiation expert:

De-recognition

Investment properties are. derecogmsed when ' either they have heen disposedl -of .or when the investrent
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposil.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of ‘the asset is recognised .in
-surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

‘Transfers are made to- or froim investiment property only when there is a changé in use. For a transfer from

investment property to owner—occup:ed property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date.of change in use. When the.use of property changes from owner occupied to mvestment
property, the. property is re-ineasured at fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain arising
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on revaluatlon is. recognized through other comprehensive income. Any loss arising on revaluation is

recognized through.the surplus or deficit.

i)  Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower- of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on

first-in-first out (FIFO}. principie and includes the expenditure incurred in acquiring the 1nventory, and
‘other ¢osts incurred in-bringing them to- their existing focation and condition. Net realizable value i¢ the

estimated selling price in'the ordinary course of business, léss the estimated cost of complétion and selling
expenses or the replacement cost as appropriate.

i} Impairment of non-financial assets:

The carrying amounts of the Board’s non-financial assets other than investment properties and ifiventories
and aie reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there i$ any ‘indication ‘of impairment. If such

condition-exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment loss.recognised in surplus

or deficit whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs to selt and its value
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are.
largely independent of'thosé from other assets of groups of assets. An impairmetit lossis réversed if there.
has been -a change. in the estimatés used 1o determine the recoverable amount and impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the assets’ -carryirig amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation or amortization if io impairmerit loss was recognized.

k) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a-result of a past event; the Board has a present legal or- constructive

obligation that-can be estimated: reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows

at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time. value of money and, where

appropriate, the risks specific to the Hability. Where the Board expects a provision to be reimbursed, for
example under-an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as-a- separate asset. but only when
the reimbursernent is virtually certain.

I} Tax
The Board is éxempt from corporate income tax under Article 46 of law No.14/2018 of 13/04/2018,
Revenue, expenses and assets af'e recognised net of the amount of value added tax except:

¢ where the value added tax :iﬂcurrcg_l_ on a purchase of assets or réndering of sefvices is. not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case the value added tax.is recognised as-part. of the cost of
acquisition of the-asset or-as part of the expense item as applicable; and

¢ receivables and payables that are stated with the athount of value added tax included

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation-authority is included as

‘part of accounts receivables or account payables in the statement of financial position.
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m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents . are measured at amortised cost subsequent to- initial récognition. For the
purposes. of the statement of cash flows, ‘cash -and cash equivalents comprises of cash and bank that are
available on demand as at the reéporting date.

n). Capital work-in-progress

The. ongomg construction/instaitation- of capital projects are recorded -at'the cost to date: or valuation and
are ‘only transferred into the relevant assets. categoties once. coimpleted and commissioned. No depreciation
15 computed on capital work-in-progress as these assets are not yet available for use. However, an expected
impairment loss on capital work-in-progress s recogmzed immediately in surplus or deficit. Carrently,
capital work it progress consists of Investment properties under construction,

0) Leases

RSSB has applied. [FRS 16 — Leases on .1 July 2019 using the modified retrospective approach. The
adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a significant impact-on the RSSB’s financial statements,

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

At inception of a contract, RSSB assésses whether a contract is, or containis, a lease, A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the: contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a. perlod of
time in-exchange for consideration. To asséss whether a contract conveys thé i ight to control the use of an
identified asset, the Board uses the definition of a lease i in IFRS. 16. This policy i is applled to contracts
entered into (or changed) on or after 1 January 2019,

RSSB acting as a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a-contract that ¢contains a lease component, the Board allocates-
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the ‘basis. ofits relative stand-dlone price. The
Board has elected t6 separate non-lease €omponents. and account for the lease and associated non-lease
components separately. The Board recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease ljability at the lease
commencement date. The rlght -of-use: asset is initially measured at. ¢ost, which comprises: the initial
amount of the lease habthty adjusted for any lease payments made at or béfore. the ‘comméncenient date,

plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove any improvements
made to branch office premises.

The right-of-use asset is sibsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to theend of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 1mpa1rment;
losses, if-any, anid ‘adjusted for certain remeasureinents: of the lease liability, The lease liability is. initially
measured at the present value of the lease: payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using theé interest rate iinplicit in the léase or, if that'rate cannhot be readily detertnined, the
Board’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Board uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate. The Board determiries its incrementat borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various.
external financing soutces and makés certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the
asset leased.

Lease payments included:in the measurement of the lease hability comprise the following:

— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that-depend on an index or a rate, initiall y measured.using the index orrate as
at the commencéinent date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

~— the: exercise price under a- purchase option that, the Board is reasonably’ certain to exercise, lease
paymients in an optional renewal period if the Board is-reasonably certain to exercise-an extension.
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option, and penalties for early termination of a lease: unless the Board is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in"future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, if there is a'change in the Board’s estimate of the amount expected to.be payable under-a
residuval value guarantee if the Board changes its assessiment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the lease
liability is rémeasured in this way, a corrésponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is'recorded in profit or loss'if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero. The Board presents right-of-use. assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial ‘position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

RSSB has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and. lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases, The Board recognizes the lease payments assoéiated with these leases as an expense-on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. All leases for RSSB «during the year ended 3¢ June 2020 were low
value in nature.

Policy applicable before 1 January 2019
For contracts- entered into before 1 January 2019, RSSB determined whether the. arrangement was or
contamed a lease based on the assessment of whether:
. fulfilment of the arrangement was depéndent on'the use of a specific asset or assets; and.
— thearrangemerit had convéyed a right to use the asset.

p) Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves are set up. under article 11 of law number 06/2004 of 22 March 2004 modifying and
completing law of 22/08/1974. The article stipulates that the Natiotial Social Secunty Institations provide
the following reserves for both the: occupational hazards arid pensions branches.

Pension’s branch. statutovy v eserie
This comprises the working capital and technical reserves as explained bglow;

Working capital reserve is. equivalent to-a quarter of the total expenses of the pension’s ‘brarni¢h previous
year. Technical reserve should not be. lower-than the total expenses of the branch for the last three years.

Occupational Hazards branch statutory reserve

This -comprises. the ‘eccupational hazards technical, security and working caplta] reserves as explained
below;

Technical reserve must be equal. to twelve times the total amount of .occupational hazards: paid during the’

‘year. Becurity reserve is equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred duting the last three years Workmg

capital reserve should be equal to a quarter-of the expenses .of the previous year,

6. New standards.or amendments for 2019 and forthcoming requiréments

i) New and currently effective requirements

The following standards or amendments issued by the International -Accounting’ Standards Board (IASB})

are-effective for accounting periods beginning on or after I January 2019+

New amendments or inferpretation e _Efféctive date
IFRS 16 Leases

1 January2019

IFRIC 23 Ungertainty over Income Tax Treatmetits.
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New amendments or interpretation |__Effective date

Prepayment features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS9) i

Long-term interest in Associates and Joint-'Ve'ntur'es {Amendinents fo TAS 28

Plari- Amendment; Curtailment-or Settlemen{:(Arhendments' o [AS ]'9'j
‘Annval improvement to IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle {Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and |
1AS 23)

‘The standards and amendments above, did not have an impact on the financial statements of RSSB.

i) New standards or amendmenis effective for 2019 and but not yet adopted by RSSB
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

On 24 July 2014 the IASB.issued the final IFRS 9 Financial Insttuments Standard, which replaces eartier
versions of IFRS 9 and coinpletes the IASB’s project-to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and -was €ffective from 1 Jariuary 2018. IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financia) items.

IFRS 9 changes the classification and measurement of financial assets. The catégory of available-for-sale
investments (where fair value changes were deferred in reserves until -disposal of the investrrient) has béen
replaced with the category of financial assets-at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (for most investments)
and the category of financial assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Ihcome (for qualifying
equity investmerits). This standard introduces changes in the measurement bases of the financial assets to
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fuir value through profit or loss. Even.
though these measurement categories are similar to 1AS 39, the criteria for classification into these cafegories
are significantly different. In addition, the IFRS' 9 impairment medel has been changed from an “incurred
loss™ mode] froin IAS 39 to an “expected crédit loss™ model. '

This standard was effective from 1 Janvary 2018 and was due for-adoption by RSSB in the financial year’
ended 30 June 2019, However, RSSB has not yet adopted IFRS 9 and is still:assessing the impact of adopting
IFRS 9 on its financial statements. :

it}  Forthcoming requirements

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and. interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning on or-afier 1 January 2020 and have not been applied.in preparirig these-financial statements.
Those -which may be televant to the Board are set.put below. The Board does not plan to adopt these.
standatds early. These will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory ot/ and effective.”

New standards or amendments © Effective date

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framewo
standards.

Definition of a Busiriess {Amendments to IFRS 3)
Definition of Material (Amendments to TAS 1 and 1AS 8)

I January 2020

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts. 1.January 2023

Sale or Contribution of Asséfs between an investor and its | Avéilab‘]g for early adbpt_ion.—

Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to TFRS 10.and [AS 8) effective date deferred indefinitely.
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- — Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards- effective 1 January 2020

This amendment sets out-amendments to IFRS Standards. (Standards), their aceompanying documents
and IFRS practice statements to reflect the issue of the International Atcounting Standards Board
(IASB) revised Conceptual Framework. for Financial Repotting in -2018 (2018 Conceptual
Framework),

- Some Standards, their aécompanying docurmients and IFRS practice statements contain references to,
] or quotations from, the IASC's Framiework for the Preparatlon and Presentation of Fmanc:al.
Statements adopted by the 1ASB in 2001 (Framework) or the Conceptual Framework for Financial
— Reporting issued in 2010:

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in [FRS Standards updates some of those
references and quotations so that they refer to the 2018 Conceptual Framework, and makes other
amendments to clarify which version of the Conceptual Framework is referred to in particuiar’
documents,

— These amendments are based on proposals ‘in the Exposure Draft Updating References to the
: Conceptual Framework, published in 2015, and amend Staridards; theit- accompanying documents and
IFRS practice statements that will be effective for annual reporting: periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020.

The adoption.of these changes will not affect the amourits and disclosures in RSSB financial
statermenis.

— IFRS 3 Business Combinations — amendment éffective 1 January 2020

The amendments clatify the definition of a businéss, with the objective of assisting entities to
determine. whether a transaction should be accounted fcr as a business. combination or as an -asset
acquisition. The amendinent is not expected to have a-material impact on RSSB financial statements.

- — IAS 1 and 148 8 Definition of Material-effective I January 2020

The amendment refines the definition of Material to make it easier to understand and aligning the
definition acress: IFRS' Standards and the Conceptual Framework. The amendment includes the
concept of ‘obscuring’ to the definition, alongside the -existing rveferences to ‘omitting’ and
*misstating’. Additionally; the amendnients aiso adds the increased threshold of ‘could influence’ 1o
*could reasonably be expected.-to influence® as below.

Infor mation is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected. fo
influence decrszons that the primary useérs of: general purpose financial statemients make on the basis
- of those financigl statenients, which provide finavicial information about a specific v eporting entity: "

However, ‘the amenqunt has ‘also removed the definifion of material omissions or misstatements
from IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Erross.

The amendments are effective from | January 2020 but may be applied earlier. R88B is assessing the

potential impact on its financial statements. resultirig from the appllcatlon of the refined definition of
- materiality. RSSB did not early adopt new of amended standirds in the yeat ended 30° June.2020.
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— IFRS 10 and 145 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets betweéen an investor and its associdgte or Joint
venture (effective date is yet to be. confirmed)

The amendmerits address an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10°and those in IAS 28,

in dealmg with the sale or contribuition of dssets between an investor-and its associate or joint venture,

The main consequence ‘of the amendments is that a full gain or Joss is recognized when a transaction
involves a business (whether it is housed in a sub51d1ary ornot). A partial .gain or loss is recognized
whien a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business, even if these: assets-are hoysed in a
subsidiary. The amendments will be applied prospectively and have no- impact on -the RSSB’s
financial statements.

7. Determination: of fair value
i} Fair valie measureiient

Fair values of cash and deposits with commercial banks, irade receivables, loans and advances and other
payables reasonably approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. and/or because they carry interest rates that reasonably approximate to.market. rates.

The carfying amounts of equity securities held for trading and .at fair value through profit of loss are the.
sam¢ as their-fair values since the-instruments are presented at fair value,

i) Valuation hierarchy

IFRS 13 requires a three tiered disclosure for all financial assets and financial liabilities that are.carried in
the books of éntities at fair value. This fair value' disclosure is dwtdecl into three levels:as follows:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active matkets for identical assets or liabilities e. g. quoted egquity
securities.

‘Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability
either diréctly (e.g. prices) or indirectly (e.g, derived from prices).

Level 3:— inputs for the asset or. hab1hty that are not based on observable market data. These items are not
Level I products and eontain at least one significant input parameter which could not be price tested from
any of the methods described for Level 2 products. Examples are products where conrefation is a significant
input parameter-and products where there is severe illiquidity in the markets:for a prolonged period of time,

a) Valuation models

The Board measures fair values using; the following fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of
inputs used in making the measurements;

Level I —inpuis that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for-identical instruments,

Level 2 —inputs other than quoted market prices included within level Ithat are observable either

directly(iike prices) or indirectly ( derived prices). This category includes instromerits valued using: quoted

market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical-or similar instfuments in
markets that are considered less active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or mdlrectly observable from market data.

For the purpose of these financial statements, the Board has measured all equity. investments (except those
that are publicly listed. and. equity investments in preference shares) usig the net asset valuation method
restricted 1o the shareholding of RSSB in the respective investments. The directors believe that this basis of
valuation provides the most relevant estimate of the worth.of these investments.
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b} Valuation Framework

The' Board has established clear guidelines on how fair value s to be determined for all assets and
lighilities measured at fair value. These guidelines are included in the board’s operational manuals: The:

fair value of both fi nanclalfnon-ﬁnanmal assets and fair values have been determined for measurement

and/or disctosure purposes based on the methods below:
(1) Investment properties arid Administrative land and buildings

The Board uses: an external independent. valuation company with recognized professional qualification
experience and values: the Board’s investment properties after gvery five years- (prevzous[y on an.annual
basis). The fair values are based on the market-conditions being the price that would be received to sell an
asset.in an'orderly transaction between market. participants on the measurement date. In the absernice of'an
active price in.an active market, the values are prepared by using thrée methods of valuation — the. direct,
comparison method, the replacement cost method and income capitalisation method.

a) The direct comparison method: Under this method, the estimiated market value of the assét is related
to. value of a knowii comparable property whereby. the laiter’s valué is taken to be the best price that
can be obtained by the property being valued with due allowance bemg made- for value affecting
differerices such as: location, level and amount of services provided, -accessibility, -size, cyclical
patterns in the local and regional property markets, development conditions discerned from land titles,
date of transaction; cendition (in case of buildings). sales data; ténure and unexpired term.

b) ‘The replacement cost method: This method is-a method of last resort in the event of the absence of an
active market or related market (under the direct comparison method), Under this method, the
-estimated value of the property is made. in relation to what it will cost to acquire the asset at.current
price. The hasic premise/assumption being that no prudent investor would pay for an-asset on offer
‘more than it'would cost to acquire the asset new: by undertaking property developmerit. The valuaticr
is thus based on the current-cost of constructing a similar buildihg capabie of: performing the sarie
function as the asset being valued. Since the subject asset’s life-will have beer: relatively consumed
with its age then the cost. estimate is then adjusted to reflect the consumed life. This method was
applied in determiniiig value for some investment properties and administrative bulldmgs classn‘ied
‘utider the property and equipment class — land and buildings. This class of property and equipment is
accounted for using the revalyation- model in accordance with the requirements of TAS 16: Property,
Plant and Equipment.

¢) Investinent method/ Income Capitalization method: This method estimates Tharket value of the
propeity based income earned from the property.: The value of thé property under this method is
determined by how much rerital income the' property generates. The market value of each preperty is
determined by considering the annual market rént iricome of the property and an estimated
-multiplier/capitalisation factor (referred to as years pischase, YP). The capitalisation rate -and
multiplier are determined by the valuation experts based on the market for similar property. This
method was applied in determining value for some investment properties.

(it} Valuation of Land

The valuation for land was based on estimated land prices for-specific focations across the country ‘and
value was detérmined. by multiplying the land size with the estinmiated price per square metfe. The
estimated value of land forms part of the estimated fair value for investmenit properties and ‘property,
“plant and equlpment

(iii} Investment in debt and equity securities

The fair value.of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; held-to-maturity investments and.
‘available for sale is determined by reference to ‘their quoted bid price at the reporting date if available:
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The fair value _fbr non-guoted equity instrumients has been determined. using. the net asset value:
methedology and the fair-value of held to maturity investments is determined using the dis¢oimted czish

flow methodology.

(). Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as:the present value of future cash: flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value of trade and other receivables

is determined at initial recognition..

c‘_) Assets measured at fair value

The table below shows the assets measured at-fairvalueand their relevant fair hiefarchy.

As at 30 June 2020
Level 1 ‘Level 3 Amount not Total as per:
measured at fair _Statement of
value  financial position
Frw Frw Frw Frw
{millions) (millions) (millions) (millions)
Pioperty and equipment - 12,625 541 13,166
Investment properties’ - 218,562 - 218,562
Asset held for sale’ - - - -
Equity investments 106,575 255,712 116,156 478,443
Total 106,575 486,899 116,697 710,171
As at 30 June 2019
Level 1 Level 3 Amounf--ndt- Total-as per
' measured at ‘statement of
fair value  financial position
Frw Frw Frw Frw
Property, and ‘equipment - 10,797 657 11.454
Investment properties: - 125,796, - 125,796
Asset held for sale’ - 454. - 454
Equity investments 101,583 241,129 73,294 416,007
Total 101,583 378,177 73,951 553,711
d) Financial .ass_efs and liabilities not- measured at fair value
The table below seis out the carrying values of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value:
30 June 2020
. ., e _ Maternity Ejo Heza.
Schemes Pension Meddical CBAI feave
Frw Frw Frw Frw. Frw
(milligns) (millions) {millions) (millions) :{millions)
Financial.
assets
Bauity . :
investments 107,687 8,469 - - -

{millions)



P Treasury. bonds 126,557 23,799 - - 3,541 153,936
‘ : Treasury bills 3781F 16.513 - - - 54,333
Commercial 14715 _ . - - . 1:4_','7 15
|- papers
Loan and _
; advances to third 5,510 35,812 - - - 41322
partics
L - r;rt_.gag'e loans: 63 - - - - 63
: ; Advances to. _— . . . .
contractors 8,79(} 13 4 ] - :8,808
Dividend : 5 945
L receivable 731 527 - . 1,258
: Other assets 2,932 1,596 1,638 33 - 6,200
i : Due fromi{Due o B, m o= .
m_] other schemes 2146 1,571 {3.544) (173} - -
P Depasits.with. 3 .
; finangia}, 139,118 139,513 - 12,643 - 291,273
.institutions’
_Eﬂsh-?‘“‘_’ bani 49,013 25,791 5,347 8,934 926 89,311
. -palances . i : i '
: Total 495,113 253,603 3,446 20,737 4,466 777,366
Financial
liabilities
R Amounts retained
. on construction . 8%s. 60 I - - 946
-contracts.
‘Benefits payable . 5.722 20495 .324 - 26,541
e ‘Othier payables. 4,003 (202) 8,240 43 - 12,086
I Total 4,888 3,579 28,733 369 - 39572
- 3¢ June 2019
: . o S Maternity Ejo Heza Total
Schemes Pension Medical CBHT icave
S Frw Frw Frw Fiw Frw Frw
: (millions) (millions) ‘(millions) [(milions) (millions) {millions)
Financial assets _
-Equity investments 64,910 8.384 - - - 73,294
: Treasury"ljonds 81,742 6,700 - - 28 88,540
Treasury bills. 76,108 40,286 - 3,820 -. 120,224
J Commercial papets 16,145 - - - - 16,145
P Loan and advances . - ;
; tothird parties 5,936 35,323 - - - 41,259
Moftgage loans 153 (6) - - - 147
— Advaneés to & T3k -
contractors 2139 59 7 Iy . 9,205
Dividend receivable 4,488 95 - - - 4,583
Other assets 2,571 376 2,925 6 - 5.878
po Due from/(Due o) _ e 1S i,
| 'Uther Schemes 1,494 2,931 {4.310) (] ]3) - -
: ' Déposits witlr _
financial 129,770 101,531 - - - 231,302
ey institutions
P Cash and bank o o e S : .
: palances 40,023 28,117 6,505 10.013 409 85,066
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Total

Financial
liabilities
Amounts retained
on construction
contracts
Benefits payable:

Other payables
Total

432,479 223,796 5,127 137133 567 675,642
572 59 - - 631

- 5672 18,129 411 24213

7.929 577 8,184 66 16,756
8,502 5,308 26,313 477 - 41,600




8. Operating segments

8.1. .Basis for Segmentation

Rwarida Social Security Board has the following five schemes as shown:

Reportable segments i Operations

Pension: ; Contributions from employers and empioyees in Rwanda ancl
e i provides benefits to pensioners, invalids and other beneficiaries

Medical - Provides medical insurance services.

Community Based Health " Provides community-based health insurance schems

Ioitiadive . —

Maternity Provides maternity leave insurance services

Heéza)

Long term savings scheme (Ao

A551st1ng the public to accumulate sayings for adi gmhed and secure
tetirement. £jo Heza is an inclusive scheme which targets. both
salaried and non-salaried workers

Although the scliemes-are overseen by the same management team, they have different objectives and are-
‘managed separately within the Board's management and internal reporting structure:;

8.2. Contribution to performance

2019/2020 Pension Medical CBHI Matermty Ejo Heza
Contributions 48% 4% 2% | 3% 2%
Benefits Paid 27% 25% itV T | Q-U%
Retyirn on ror e o _ o R
investment 83% 16% S 02% 1% S 0.1%
Assets 75% 3% | 03% 1% ] 03%
2018/2019 Pension Medical | CRHI Maternity Ejo Heza
Contributions. 27% ' 25% 47% . 2% . ' 00%
Benefits Paid 66% 32% 1% . 1% 0.0%
Return on . 1o | o o o
investment 74% 24% 0:5% . 1%. 0.1%
Assets 27% 25% % 2% 0.0%
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9. Contributions

Sub-Note 2020 2019

Frw. Frw

(miillions) (millions)

Penision sclieme 9.1 102,178 94371
Medical scheme 9. 51,335 46,431
Community Based Health Insutance (CBHI} scheme 93 48.315 33,383
Maternity. léave scheme 9.4 7416 6,750
Ejo Heza 9.5 3715 90
' 212,959 181,025

9.1. Contributions— Pension scheme

In accordance with Law. No 45/2010 concerning the responsibilities, organization -and functioning of the
Rwanda Soecial Securlty Board, pension contributions :are determined at 8% of an employee’s gross salary
(exclusive of transport allowance), of which 5% is paid by the employer and 3% is paid by the employee. Of the:
amounts-paid .by the employer, 2% relates to employee ‘occupational hazards while 3% goes towards the
employee’s pension.

2020 2019

Frw Frw

(millions) (millibns_)

Pénsion And Occupational Hazard Contributions 98,377 91,014
Pension And Occupational Hazard Contribution Penalties 948 2,043
Pension and Occupational Hazard Contribution arrears 2.853 1,314
102,178 24,371

9.2. Contributions — Medical scheme

In accordance with Law. No. 45/2010 concerning the-responsibilities, organization :and functioning of the
Rwanda Social Security Board, both employee and employer medical contributions are determined at 7.5% of an
individual’s basic salary.

2020 2019

Frw Frw

{millions) (millions)

Public Medical Contributions 40,179 36.655.

Piivate Medical Contributions 10,621 9316
Pensioners Medical Contributions 335 _ 460
51,335 46,431

9.3.. Contributions — CBHI scheme

In accordance with-Article 2 of the Prime Minister’s order No.034/01 of 13/01/2020 related to ‘the Community-
Based. Health Insurance Schemé ‘contributions, contributors to cominunity-based health insurance are thie
following:

1. The Governmient;

2. Employees in State-orgaris and those in private sector;

3..Entities providing health insurance services operating in Rivanda;

4, Telecommunication companies;

5. Petrol and gas oil trade companies.
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— CBHI contribitions received by RSSB during the year were as follows:

2020 2019

Friv Frw

P {millions) (millions)
Government contributions 9,828 8,193
i Memibers contributions 23.841 20,936
_— Thsurance contribution 5,380 4254
s : Employees contributions 1,093 -
:' Telecommurnication-contribution 3915 -
— "Petrol and gas oil contributions 642 -
CBHI Contribution partners. 2,914 -

Other CBHI. Subsidies 701 -

- 48,315 33,383

During the ‘year ‘the Prime minister’s order No.034/61 of 13/01/2020 introduced new: sources of CBHI
contribution income’ which include Employees, Telecommunication companies, Patrol and Gas oil and other
'CBHI subsidies. CBHI alsa received contributions from its partners like Imbuto Foundation.

9.4. Contributions —.-Mat_er.mty-leave-‘schem'e

‘Pursuant to Law N° 003/2016 of 30/03/2016 establishing and governing maternity leave beriefits scheme. The
contribution for maternity leave benefits is equal to zero point six percent (0.6%) of the salaty to-which the
contribution is subscribed. The employer and the employee each contribuites zero point three percent (0.3%).of

: the salary to which the contribution is subscribed..

9.5. Contributions — Ejo Heza
"'" 2020 2019
Frw Frw
(millions) {millions)
- Menibers.conitributions/sdvings 3.692 85
Government contributions to member savi ngs 23 5
3,715 S0
10. Benefits paid
2020 2015
‘Sub-Note Frw Frw
Pension.schéme 101 30.468. 27.5%4
Medical scheme 10.2 27,597 25918
Comununity Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme 103 52,716 48,684
Maternity leave scheme: 1,284 1.812
112,039 104,007
: o




- 10.1. Benefits paid — Pension scheme

2024 2019.
Frw Frw
- (milliogs) {miltions)
' Benefits paid to pensioners 23,788, 21,304
Benefits paid to deceased members’ beneficiaries 3,522 5,270
— Sub-total benefits paid 29,311 26,575
' Incapacity- benefits 343 345
Other occupational hazatds. 814 674
- Subtotal - Oc¢upational hazard paid 1,157 1.019
: Grand total benefits paid 30,468 27,594
" 10.2. Benefits paid — Medical scheme
2020 2019
i Frw. Frw
_ _ _ (millions). {millions)
Medical services trom partner hospitals, health centres and clinics 18,952 17,589,
oy Pharmacy-costs 8.645° 8,329
:' 27,597 25918
" 10.3. Benefits paid — CBHI scheme
: 2020 2019
Frw Frw
(milligns)} {millions)
B CBHI pharmacy costs 25,954 25,176
CBHI medical services - 26,756 23,507
52,710 48,684
-
5 48




6t

‘spiep JOYLINY.I0J €T 01 '[ [ S2J0U 01.19Jay "SUNOIE
WD PUB SUONNINSUL |RIOUBUT] (M mxmoamw. W9} *S[[1q pue SPUC KNS | U0 1S2I5UI WO} SWIODUL S)1 JO 1S0LU $a1RIaUa3 gSSy

OFSFS 01L°8% - rrlL 5% S0E1 Tk £8¢ TSI EY9'RL 908 - 0zT'eE
E:._._Ouo.n
LEOL LY - £ Fi¥ 4Ep 454 %1 €087 6ELT £88°¢ H0Ee Waiing
_ sueo|
g ze - - - - - - - - 1s € “oBednop
Spuog
£68°L 16£°Y1 . (17| - - - - 1S4 IS¢ P69 B06°T1 Amseaiy
spuaq
0Lz pSL - - - - - " - - 0Lz ySL. dresodio
spuog
F6t - - - - - - . = - F6E - JUANLDAON
. . siaded
681°¢ Lest - - - - - - - 681 LESTI [ERREINC)
SUHIISY
Lerpueay
_ s
o C ) . sisodap
185°0¢ 26 - - - 6L - - sch’s 95T°TI TE6' 1 CLS'1L €11 Lz,
. - _\ _ 8|09
£19° F659 - - L FLI - - BHET £62°4 680°F W Amiseal,
TR0
Fsatau|
“awoaul
1537 L0L°T - - - - - - 695 809 7991 660T 71 BTy
» _ _ _ . . .  Awoauy
5K 9¢0°e - - - - - - £6L: £te: 095°s 7607 [ puapIALg]
(suonpm)  (swoyuw)  (seoign)  (swoyprw)  (suempnm)  (swmoyw) (suoupmi) (swoymw)  (swoypma)  (swofm)  (suompmw)  (Swomyjinr)
Ay PORE | Ay Ay AL AuLE ALy Mg Ay amag
6107 0707 6107 076T 6107 0207 60T 0T 616z 0207 107 070z 2300
1e3e), vzay of g 248 QPN HYD PWIYIS [P, DURN[IG BOISUIJ
JUIGIU] JUIUISIAUL [
I [ { { f {7 i { I [ (" { I I i {




ns

£55°9 950'c £6L £v6 099's 7607 (Z+D) 103 puen,
066 7T v €26 €9 971 (@ rE303-ans
W s - ] - € yueg WIXAIdY
$8z 126'1 9re £T6 65F 866 ueq vid
091 LLT i ) 093 LT PANWE] wodHEIES

SIMAULISIAUN UFI320)]

Por's 98L L¥P 0Z LI0S 99, (D) reyoy-qng ,
- Ly j 0z - L9 PATWLT dNOJ0Y UIUNSAAL| BPURMY
09 ) i ) 0oL ) painu salnsnpu AL3usiu)
50§ } G0¢. ) - . snburqador
g ) ; - 8¢ g R
zz £8¢ . . i £8¢ PANWIT AL Yy
49¢ 91¢ . . 99¢ 9IE WAL, [BISAID
681 - ot. . gt - RALII[RI]
616 . 76 ) 860° - ESLY Jo yueg
SJUIWISIAUE JBIO]
(suoifjau) (suoyprw) (suornrue) (suoygu) {suonpym) -(saoy[ium)
AR My Mg ALy My Mg w
6107 0207 6107 0707 6107 0707
(e10L WIS [EANPILY WIS UOISUAS

AWOIUT PUIPIAIL “T°I ¥




(1) (eror-gns
560 eureSiy,

(BpueivY) BILY Y JONUBY [BIDIBONUG,)

(e1ppAfsENY) RPpURAY. NP Mindog yueg

tediy 4o jueg
Aieg gv
(ClysD) epumag] Jo jues Juatido|aadgg

_sodap w3y Buo) uo awoeaur Jsasaau)

HORIYSHL [BIUBULY

SUOBNINSTI {2IOUEUL M SSodap ULId) WO dur0dur 15200y g

STt 889'9 - - £IE'T SI#'E S0P 0LT'E

£l 1z - - - - £EL 12r

8 ¢ - - - - 8. 9¢

g¢ £A8 - - 808 g €8

05 (s - - - - 0s IsE

9L 0zi - - - e 0Tl

05¢'p L98'F - - £1€'7 019 00T 96T'¢C

(suayp) {suoypu)  (suoyw)  (sworpnn} (suoypw)  (suoppm)  (swogpur) (suoifjim)

ALy Ay M Ay ALE] My A

6102 070z 6107 070T 6107 0z0T 6107 0207
JL LN R aAE] ,EEHx..E .,.Eu_...uw _wu_._-u—z IS BOISUDG

- - 698 809 799°f 6607

- - I L98 - -

- - £z 1t - -

- - - - ¢g. 44

2 - - - z Ll

- - - - L 36

- - - - ¥E1 ¥e

- - - - 7 L0t

- - . - 1z LE

- - “ : §eL Al

- . - - 3y 1512

“MLE Ay A My ALY Mg

8107 6107 8107 6107 6102 0707

1210, WIYIS [EHPITA] AWIIG HOISUD

SR
1damoyg,

vzepd si0y30(.
RZB[] fEISAI])-

BZB|J UDISUS] BUBSRIIEMY
PZB]] U0ISUS] SFUBSIA

TZE|J U0ISUS 15uoie)

2] UOISIS ezueiN

ANODUT [BIUTY IR

BZB| . UOIST pURID)
stugwied y 2AIINIANY nOAIRY

JUCUL [BYUIY CTIT




s

LBEOL FI6'PT - £6L SSr'Y 95T'TI 76611 SLET
- #51 - - - - - Fol
- 6l - - - - - 6l
r0y 861 - - - - ¥09 51
¥09 061 . - - - $09 06l
SE'El £58'LY - £6L €19 £e8'8 £76'8 7'
8L¢ €19 - - ¥y g6l PIg &It
- Tt - - - - Ay
1LV - - - - - 121 -
s6 €L - - - - ¢6 gl
61 0e - - - - 0€
LS YA - PIT LLS 9LE°1 608 191
38 608 - - 86T 65¢ 06k “6bY
¢1Z LB1°I - - SIT L8111 - -
638L%1 et . - PeL STl 9L uira s
61t £0p - - £91 LL £5%. 98E
1967 095 - 8¢ 8LV SLIT £8¢°¢ 166
019T CE0'E - 16l 786, £8¢ 82971 8I5°L
8PE'T 000 - - a3l 85071 £68 k6
- 1 - - - [ - -
(suoyym) (suoyjt)  (suogu)  (suopiw) (suonu)  (suoppyue) (suoypey) {suopa)
Al Al A vl K] mag A Al aag
6107 0207, 6107 0707 6107 0707 6107 0207
. _EFH EAL T | .ﬁ_Eﬁ.ﬂE JUIIHIY _-«u_—...&.—e uﬂ_aﬂam .—swm:ﬂ.ﬁ
[ i 0 ¢ m ¢ i = £ [

(€4+2+1) j10) puesty

(¥) (e30i-qng.

puny 1sap ey Jo Huey

Pung JSaN Mg Be Fw0Iut 15213 |
{£) IE10)-qu§

palu epuesy g

sodap 1182 wo JmodE Jsa1a)u]
() 1e10)-qng

quﬁ 0 ung

{eputay) RILGY 0 Mieg ﬁ..ﬂuBEEou
ODAUSLAT

Yueg gv

Nk eqndasy

%B Anaby

§50) rwiediy

PRNUET BPUBRY Jueg. (AL
B___Eﬁ.%c?g a1

PONWIET BPUEMY x&n_&m
paNWIE] 131N Jo yueg.
anbiiegd3on

g anendo ] anbuey

PRRLLT qURE $5303Y

spsodap 23] JIOYS L0 JWoIU] Jsata)u]

uopIIRSU JKISUENL]




%

£91

{6LLT)

{905)
(007}
143
5T

(98T}
(LpET)

{suomrm)
ng

6107

T+

(870°¢y
{6)
697

]

(6t
9T
196
S
(1+€)

I8z

1056)
€41
wh'e.
(66€)
po1° 1)

{suonyim).

mag

0T
(L0

8¢ 6 4 Z€

- - (8707
{61 (#) (6s1) 0]

- - 951 97

- - 1 9

- - € 16T

- - z9f 912"
8t 196: - -

(€6 (861) {9510 {ZrTy)
- - 656 {1v0)

- - loLL'ny $06

- - (90£) 18T

- - {002) (06)

. - §Z¢€. <01

8 £t 81 65
- - (087} {66€)
- - (LheD). (bo1'1)
(suorpui) (snogpmr) (suoiiy) (suoypu)
Ak Auh] A Ay
6107 0202 GHT 0702

AWIYIY oIsuLf

WIS [EAPI
5507 50 J1j0ad 310143 ON[EA JIE] JE SOSSE [EIOUETL JO LOYLNIEA UG (SSOD/UIED) “TT

{Dr} dnoin Juainsoau] gpuesy

‘sjusmpsaaug paba 1oy

{DIdF)uoneIodio)) JUSLUISIAL] SIUIA0L WIIses

PRI WA AL

PAMUCT AIBGUIBIY LINY

(O1Td} ..ﬂcm_.“._EoU. Juatgsaau] ssuehigug epueay
PRI VMY AOS UOZLIOR]

Woaa L [EISA4])

anbuegadoy

£308) 11981y Jo yueg

sostpyy agiredu

pampi sideauo)) amun|N

(e sumg wawdopaaa( epuzmy

SAJEIIMISSY

{10VvH pue

VEITN ) SLGIPISQUS HIaWSaAu] S[usiepy Suppog

HINIA JUEOL

PO BDURINSUT |BIMIC VA WY NOS

panuI T sfmsol a8py

(D17} Aueduroy juannsaaur urplo UStalo J epuesiy
PaHiT 92URmSsY AT Y MY YNOS

£10¥) vs 23poT awen tiadeyy

() panwrysiadoaaag dyewnlr)

saaEpsgng




13. Gain/(loss) on valuation of investment properties

Description of property

Kacyiru executive apartments
Grand pension plaza
‘Musanze pension plaza
Rwamagana perision plaza.
Nyanza pension plaza
Karongl pension plaza
Restdential house - Kiyovu
Kiyovu residential house land
Nyagatare houses

Land for investment properties
Land. for ingurance plazas
Former CECFR plot
Gaculiro vision. city land.
CBD1-rugenge land
Kinyinya land
Bafsinda_p_arcel

Nyagatare land

Rwamagana parcel 1- & 11
Nyanza plot

Rubavu plot

.Land from ' GPD

Batsinda pipeline investment
Gispzi plot

“Kigali-golf club land

Crystal plaza building

Land for investment property
Twin tower 2

“Total

Pension Medical Total
2020 2020 2020
Frw Frw Frw
{millions) (mitlions) (millions)
1,199 - 1,199
2,369 - 2,369
33 - 33
(920) - 920
(1,137 - (1,137)
(1.025) - {1,025)
23 - 23
179 - 179
(3) - (5)
435 - 435
1.103 - 1.103
361 - 361
31,635 - 31,635
418 - 418
31.584 - 31,584
6,230 - 6,230
424 - 424
2.957 - 2,957
421 - 421
{2) - (2)
(530) = {530)
23 - 23
963 - 963
1,042 . 1,042
1345 - 1,345
- 413 413
- (944) (944)
79,126 (531)

78,395

RSSB ¢ompleted valuation of its invéstment properties in June.2019 anid adopted thie revalued balances at:1-July 2019. The
last revalnation had been conducted in 2012. Over this period. there has been significaint incredsé in value of land-in
Gaculire and Kinyinya. For further details on the valuation exercise refer to note 235,
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22. Revaluation gain/(loss) on property

Class of property and equipment

Land for administrative buildings
Gicumbi plots
Nyamasheke plot
Nyamagabe plot

Gisagata plot

Muhanga plot

Ruhango plot

Rutsiro plot

‘Ngororero. plot

Gakenke:plot

Gatsibo plot

Nyabihu plét

Burera plot

RSSB headquartérs

Assets held for sale (note 27)
Other buildings

Pension Medical Total
‘Frw Frw Frw
(miliions) (miltions) (millions)
170 242 413
(6 - (6)
6 - 6
2 - 2
3) - 3
109 - 109
9 - 9
) N (7)
(16} - (16)
12 - 12
(2) - (2)
(12) - (12)
(14 (14}
- 2,017 2.017
82 - 82
(2) - (2)
328 2,260 2,587

A revaluation gain on land and buildings was realised during the year as the resuit of a revaluation exercise
-undertaken by RSSB, For more details on the valuation refer to note 24.
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24.. Intangible assets

30-Jun-20

Cost

At start-of year
Adjustment t¢_ opening.
balances

Additions - IT
modernisation {Ishema
project) [work in progress)

Amaortization

At start of year
Adjustment fo opening -
balances

Charge [or the year

Closing net book value

30-J i_.l_n-19

Cost
At start.of year

Adjustment of'opening Balance

Additions

Amortization

At start of vear

Adjustment of-opening Balance
Chatge forthe year

Closing het book value.

‘Pension Medical Maternity. Ejo Heza )

Scheme. Scheme CEHL Leave Total
_l'f"nv Frw. Frw Frw Frw
(millions) (millionsy  (millions). (millions) ‘(mitlions)y (millions)

385 813 281 7 365 2,051

42 17 (63). 3 . -
1,396 - - - - 1.396.
2,022 831 218 10 365 3,447
(313) (347) (229) (5) - (1,094}
(36) (8 46 (3) - -
{138) (157 (25) (2) (36) (379)
(507) (711) (209) (10) (36} (1,473)
1,516 119 9 I 328 1_;_97:3

Pension Medieal CBHI Maternity Ejo Heza Total
Scheme: Seheme Leave e

Frw ~ Frw Frw Frw _ Frw-

-(miltions) (millions) (milliens)  (millions) (millions) (millions)

312 523 177 2 246 1,260

25y {13) 36 2 - -

208 304 6% 2 119 791

585 813 281 7 365 2,051

(275 (496) (136) (1 - (909)

15 8 (213 (1 - -

{52, (58) (72) {2} - (185)

313) (547) (229) (5) - {1,094)

272 266 51 2 368 957

Intangible assets relate to computer software. licenses. It also includes any cost that is used to upgrade the.

computer software.
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25. Investment properties

Scheme ‘Sab-Note. Carrying valnes
2020 2019.
Frw Frw
(miilions) (millions)
Pension Scheme 351 205,875, 112,579.
‘Medical Schieme 152 12.686 13,218
“Total 218,562 125,796

During the year under review, RSSB’s investment properties, and administrative land and buildings (classifi ed
under property and equipment — note 23) were subject to val uation at 24 June 2019 by NSHIZIRUNGU Vincent
an independent professional valuer. Valuations methods used were the Direct comparison, Replacement cost

methods and the income capitalization method. Details of these valuation meéthods are as follows:

1. The direct comparison method: Under this meihod, the estimated market vilue of the asset is related to.
value of -a known comparable property: whereby :the latter’s value is taken to be the best.price that can be
abtained by the property being valied with die allowance being made for value affecting differences such
as: location, level and amount of services provided, accessibility, size, cyclical paiterns in the local and
tegionial property markets, development conditions discerned from land titles, date of transaction, condition
(in'case of buildings), sales data, tenure and unexpired term.

2. The replacement cost-method: This method is a method of Jast resort in the event of the absence of an active

market or refated market (under the direct comparison-method). Under this method, the estmlated value of the
property is made in relation t¢ what it will cost to acquire the asset at current price. The basic
premlsefassumptlon being that no prudent investor would pay for an asset on-offer more than it would cost to
acquire the asset new by undertakmg property development. The valuation is thus based on-the cutrent cost of
constructing-a similar building capable of performing the same function as the asset bemg valued. Since the
subject asset’s life will have been refatively consumed with its age, then the cost estimate is then adjusted to:
reflect the consumed life. For the purposes.of this valuation, the valuer consideréd the replacement cast of'a
building t¢ be-equivalent to the insurable value of the building.

3. Investment method/ Income Capitalization method: This method esfimates. market value of the property
based income earned from the property. The value of the property under this. method is determined by how
much rental income the property generates;, The market value of each property is determined by considering
the-annual market rént income of the property and an estimated multiplier/capitalisation factor (referred to as
years purchase, YP), The capitalisation rate.and multiplier.are determined by the valuation experts; based on
the market for similar property. This method was applied in determining value for some investment
properties.

Valuation of Land

The valuation for land was based on estimated fand prices for specific. locations across the country and value
was determined by. multiplying the land size with the estimated price per square metre. The estimated value of
land forms part of the estimated fair value for investment properties and property, plant and equipment.

Where the diréct:comparison method was used to determirie property values, the properties have been recorded at

their Open Market values which is the highest price in terms of money which the property. under-appraisal should
‘or could fetch in 4 competitive and .open market under conditions requisite for.a fair sale,

Implicit in this definition is the consumination of a sale at specified date and the passing of ownership from seller
to buyer under the following conditions;

1.. Both the buyer and seller are econOmicall'jY' miotivated and are both acting prudent_l'y
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2. The sale _pric_e.'i's not affected by any undue influence

Both' parties are well informed and well advised and are.acting in what they consider to be their own best
[interest

j 7

4. Areasonable time is.allowed for expostire in'the oper: market value

The valuer has assumed that the property is not affected by statutory-notices and neithér the property not its use,
gives rise to. contravention of any statiitory requirements. The Valuer did not inspect any woodwork or dther
parts of the-structure that were covered, inaccessible or unexposed.

The. open matket values for the lands for development in urban and rural areas was obtained using the
Comparison valuation method and international valugtion standards.
Where replacement cost method was used to determine property values, the cost of construction was recognized-

at 1,500 USD per square meter (at an.exchange rate of Frw 910:US$1} by analyzing the different costs of
building similar modern commercial properties completed in the last 3 years.

As per the valvation report, fotal valuations of RSSB properties are as follows:

Valuation as at 24 June 2019

(Frw)
Open market 223,383,618,000
Insurance value 89,300,042,000

Although the valuation was done 'on 24 June, 2019, the valuation report was not finalized in the financial year
ended 30 June 2020 and therefore RSSB’ management has taken the decision to adopt these valuations for
investment properties as at 1 July 2020. RSSB- management. has -adopted the open market values for the
properties.

25.1. Reconciliation of movement in Investment properties during the year - Pension Scheme

At 30 June 2620
Property. Asat | July201%  Adjustment to Transfer Fair valuation Adtditions Dispesals As at30 June
description ' © opening from: gain/(loss) 2020
balince  property-and
{refund -equipmeéntto’
Rusororo invesiment
plots) property
Fiw, Trw Frw Frw Frw Firw Frw
(millions) (miltions)y (millions) {mibions) {millions) {millions) {millicns}
Kagyirir 6574 - - 1,199 -. - 7,773
axecutive
apartments
Grand perision 21,680, - . 2369 - - 24,049
plaza
Musanze pension. 1487 33 - - 4,519
plazza
Rivainagand 4323 - - (920) - . 3,403
pension plaza
Nyanza'pension 4,558 - . (1,137) - - 3421
plaza
Karongi pensmn 4463 - - {1,025) - - 3439
plaza
Residential house 200 - - 23 - - 1224,
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Property
descripiion

kivovu

Kiyovu
residential house
land .

‘Nyagatare hduses

Land _ﬁ_}r
invistiment.
properties
Land for’
insurance plazzas

Former CECFR
plot
Gacufim'viéion-
“eiby-land

Chdi-rugenge
land ’

Kiriyinya land

‘Batsinda parcel
'Nyagat_are land
Rwamagana
parcel i&ii
Nyanzi plot
Rubavu plot
Land from GPD

‘Batsinda pipeline’
-ifivestient -

Gisozt plot

Kigalf ‘golf ¢lub
“land

Rusororo.plats

Nyarugenge plots

Residential hovigé .

- equipment

KEA - Equipment
KEA - Generator
KEA - Elevatirs

Crvstal plaza
building

Nyantarama
‘pension plaza
Furnitiire anf
fittings —

Residential
houses

Fixtures and

As at 1 July 2019

60

3350

798
781
22.966
626

10,633
£,003
247
179

576

Adjusiment to
opening
bilance
{refund

Rusorore

plots}

'[_'ransi‘er
from
property and

eguipment to.

investment
property

77

Fair valuation
‘gain{(loss)

179

{5)

1103
361

31,635
418

31,584
6,230
a4

2957

421
2)
{530

25

963
1.042

Additions

T4

3]

16318

Disposals

As at 30 Juné
2020

256

53

1,526,
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P e Property Agatl July 2009 Adjustment to Transfer  Fair valuation Additions Dispasals As at30 June.
-deseription " apening from gaini(loss) ' . 2020
; . balance  propérty and :
H {refund  equipmentto
‘Rusororo investment
i plots) property
Aittings in other:
-investmerit
- ‘properties
: 'KEA - Furniture 290 - . . - (59} 332
«and fittings
_ Electrical 2,163 - - - - - 2,165
o equipment for all
; plazas .
; 112,579 (2.135). 77 79,126 EFAF]] {892} 205,875
-
At 30 June 2019
- P'rdperty-descripiion- Asat 1 July AdjustmentS: Additions Disposals As at:30 June
I 2018 in.opening 2019
: : hibuance
‘--s_ Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
: {milligns) (millions) (millions) (millions) (millions).
Kacyinu Executivé. Apdriments. 6:374 - - - 6,574
‘Grand Pension Plazza. 21,680 - - - 21,680
LT Musanze Pension Plazza 4487 - - - 4487
Rwamagana Pension Plazza 4,323 - - - 4323
: Nyanza Pension. Plazza 4,558 - - - 4,558
R Karongi Petision Plazza 4,465 - - - 4463
j ; ‘Residential House Kivova 200 - - - 200
i Nyagatare Houses -6 - - - 60
S Fixtures and fittings in Investment 290 - - - 290
) properties
! ' Land For Investmerit Properties 350 - - - 350
Land For Insurance Plazzds 798 . - - 798
P Fermer CECFR Plot 781 - - - 781
: Gaculiro Vision City Land- 22,167 - 799 . 22,966
CBD1 -Rugenge Land 133 -493 e - 626
i~ Kinynya Land 11,542 - - 1909) l'C_i_',63'3-
,_ : Batsinda Parcel 1.048 - - {45) 1,003
: ' Batsinda Pipeline - - - - -
Kacyiru Land - - - - -
: Nyagatare Land 247 - - - 247
Ruwainagana Paréel T & i} 179 - - - 179
Nyanza Plot 135 - - - 135
—— Rubavu Piot 53 - - - 53
: Land from GPP 2,066 - - - 2,066,
Batsinda Pipéline Invesiment. 19 - - - 19
— Gisozi-Plot 627 - - - 627
: _Kl'g_a_li Golf Club Land 5,642, - - - 3,642
Rusoford Plots 0 14,036 - 14,056
- .
B 77




Property description

Nyarugenge Plots.

Equipment— Residential houses

Equipment ~Kacyiru Executive Apartments
Ger_)era_tors--Kacyiru E)’c_ecutive Apartments.
Elevators ~ Kacyiru Executive Apartments-
Crystal Plaza Building

Furniture and fittirigs — Residential houses
.Furniture and fittings — Kacyiru Executive
Apartments

Electrical 2quipment For all Plazas

Asat1July: - Adjustments Additions Bisposals As at 30 June
2018 to opening 2009
balance

Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
(millions) {millions) (millioxis) (miillions) {millions)
- - 1,264 - 1,264

1 - . - 1

224 - - - 224

170 - - - 170

198 - - - 198

1,160 - - - 1,160

4 - - - 4

376 - - - 576

2.165 - - - 2,165
96,920 493 16,119 (954) 112,579
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- 26. Investiment properties in the process of constraction
Scheme S'ub-No_te- Carrying values
- 2020 2019
Fiw Frw
(milligns) {miltions)
- Pension Scheme 26.1 7.684 5288
. Medical Scheme 26.2 - 19
Total 7,684 5,307
-
" 26.1.  Investment properties under construction — pension scheme
30 June 2020.
- Propérty description At1July  Adjustment to Additions  Reclassificati At 30 June
2019 .opening on 'to other 2020
balances assets
— Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
; ('mi'l'li'u_ns) {millions) (millions) (millions) __(ihilliims_)
Land foi dévelopment (19) 19 - ' - -
— Batsinda Housing projéct phase 2 4.467 - 3,217 - 7,684
- Investm_e_nt inCATCHUP )
INVESTMENTS LIMITED 840 - - (840) -
5,288 19 3217 (840) 7,684
30 June 2019
Property description At 1 July 2018 Additions- At 30 June 2019
™ Frw Frw ‘Frw
Land for development {19) 0 (19
Batsinda Housirig project phase 2 64 4.403 4,467
— Investmient in CATCHUP INVESTMENTS LIMITED 840 0 840
' 884 4,403 5,288
26.2. Investment praperties unider construction — medic_al_ scheme
-
: At 30 June 2020
Property description At 1 July 2019 Adjustment At 30 June2020
. to opening
balarnces
Frw Frw
— (miillions) (niillions) {milliohs)
.,., LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT 19 (19 -
19 (19) -
—

B0




At 30 June 2019

Property deéseription

LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT

27. Assets held for sale

Cost

‘Opening at 't July

Revaluation‘gain
Disposals
Closing at 30 June-

At Y July 2018 At 30 Juné
2019

Frw Frw
‘(millionsy (millions)

19 19

19 19

RSSB’s assefs held forsale comprise centre socf_'b-recréar_{f at Kacyirn estate,

2020 2019
Frw Frw
(miillions) (millions)
454 454
82
(536) 0
0 454
81
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29, Corpura’te. bonds

Sub note
Crystal Ventures Limited 29.1
Agacifo Development Fund 256.2.

Classification of Corporate boads (Non-current Vs Current)

Non-current
Crystal Ventures Limited
Agaciro Development Fund

Current
Crystal Ventures Limited
Agaciro Development Fund

29.1. Corporate bond issued by Crystal Ventures Limited
At 1 July

Placement

Accrued interest

Maturity
At 30 June

29.2. Corporate bond issued by Agaciro Development Fund

At 1 July

Placement-

Accrued intereést
Maturity:
‘At 30 June.

2020
Frw
{millions)
12,529
12,225

24,754

2020.
Frw
{millions)

8,569
9,609

18,178

3.960
2,616

6,576

2020
Frw
{millions)
12,000
529

12,529

2020
Frw
{millions)
12,600
225

12,225

92




.30.. Treasuiy bonds

The treasury bonds held by RSSB as at'the end of the year per scheme were as follows:

Desceription

Treasury bonds - Pénsion. scheme
Treasury bonds - Medical schemic
Treasury bonds- Ejo Heza

Sub-Note

3041

30.2

30.3
Total

Classification of Treasury bonds (Non-curreni Vs Current)

Non-current

Treasury bonds - Pension'scheme
Treasury bonds - Medical scheme
Treasury bonds- Ejo Heza

Current
Treasury bonds - Pension schieine
Treasury.bonds - Medical scheme

30.1. Treasury bonds — Pension scheme

Particular

Opening balance T July

Prior year adjustment

Tiivestment during the year

Interest income earned dur'ing the year
Receipts duringthe vear

Closing 30 June:

Sub-total (1)

Sub-total (2)
Grand total (1+2Y

Balance as at

Balance as at

30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
Frw Frw
{millions) (millions)
126,597 81,742
23.799° 6,700.
3.541 98
153,936 88,540
2020 2019
Frw Frw
{millions) (millions),
106,469 75,201
21,716 6,703
3,541 9§
131,726 82,002
20,127 6,539
2.083 0
22,211 6,539
153,936 88,340
2020 2019
Frw Frw
{millions) ¢millions)
81.742 44,779
51,259 39,510
12,909 6,942
(19:313) (9.489)
126,597 81,742

The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.
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30.2. Tre;asu'ry ‘bonds — Medical scheme

Opening balance 1 July

Prior year adjustment

Tnvestment during the year

Interest income earned during the year
Receipts-during the year

‘Closing 30 June

2020 2018

Frw Fiw

(millionsy (miflions)
6,704 9.737

16,767 -

1,351 951
{1.020% (3.988)

23,759 6,700

The amortized cost of the government securities closely ‘approximates their fair value.

31. Treasury bills

Treasury bills - Pension scheme
Treasury bills - Medical scheme
Treasury bills.— Maternity leave scheme.

31:1. Treasury bills — Pension scheme

Opening balance 1 July
Purchases

Interest acerued
Maturities.

Closing 30 June

Balance as at

Balance as-at

The:amortized. cost-of the. government secuitities ciosely approximates their fair value:

31.2. Treasury bills— Medical scheme

Particular

At 1 July
‘Purchases
Interest acerued
Maturities.
Closing 30 June

Sub-Note 30-Jun-20 30-Ju-19
Frw Frw
(millions) (mitlions)
30.1 37.811 76,108
30,2 16,513 40,286
303 3,829
Total 54,323 120,224

2020 2019

Frw Fr‘w

(miliions) {riiillions)

76,108 41,357

48477 153,956

4:622 4,089

(91,397) (123,293)

37,811 76,108

2020 2019

Frw Frw.

(millions) ‘(milliens).

40,286 23,967

16,270 65,943

1,758 2,348

(41,802) (51,972).

16,513 40,286

The anmortized cost.of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.
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: 31.3. Treasury bills — Maternity leave scheme
Particular 2020 2019
~ Frw Frw
: {millions) (millions)
At 1 July 3.829 :
_— Purchases during thie year - 3,632
Interest accrued 174 177
Maturities (4.003) -
Clesing 30 June _ - 3,829
: The amortized cost of the government securities closely approxiimates their fair valie.
32. Commercial papers
"’ During the year; RSSB invested in commetcial papers as follows:
Company issuning commercial paper Sub-Nate. 2020° 2019
- Frw Frw
: (millions) (miltions)
Horizon Group 32.1 - ‘2,756
- NPD Limited 322 14,715 ) 13,389
: Total 14,718 16,145
- Details of the commercial papers are as follows:.
32.1. Commercial paper issued by Horizon Group
_ 2020. 2019
' “Frw Frw
(millions) (miltions)
— Opening balance 1 fuly 2,756 2,767
: Purchasés during the year - 2,640
Interest acerued. dufing the year 211 349
— Maturities {2,966) (3,000)
Closing 30 June - 2,756

On 22 February 2019, Commercial papers with Horizon Group Limited were renewed attracting.an annual
- interest-of £1% with a term of 364 days from purchase. This commercial paper matured and was fully settled
: during the'yeart.
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- 32.2.: Conimtercial papérs issued by NPD Liniited
2029 2019
Frw Frw
= (millioiis) (millions)
Opening balance 1 July 13.389 13,430
Purchases during thé year 14,520 13.200°
" Interest accrued during the year 1.326 1.760
Maturities {14.520) (15.000)
Closing 30 June 14,715 13,389
; On 13 May 2020, Commercial paper with NPD. Limited was renewed atfracting an annual interest of 1.0% with
term of 364 days.
H 33. Loans and Advances to third parties
Pension Medical Total
—_ 2020 2019 2020, 2019 2020 2019
Sub note Fiw Frw: Frw Frw Frw Frw
(millions)  (millions) (millionsj  (miltions) (millions) {millions)
- Loan to City of Kigali 331 1,501 1,576 - - 1.501 1,576
: Loans to. MININFRA. 332 4,009 4,359 - - 4,009 4.359
Loan to MINECOFIN s .
{CBHI 'ﬁnanc.ing. Id__anj 33.3 - - 35,812 33323 35,812 35,323
o Total 5,510 5,936. 35,812 35,323 41,322 41,259
— Classification of Loans and-advances to third parties (Non-current Vs.Current)
Pension Medical. Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
. Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw’ Frw
(miilions) (millions) (millions) (millions) {n‘iillions) {millionsy
Non-current
- Loan to City of Kigali 1,501 1.276. - . 1,501 1276
‘Loans to MININFRA - - - - - -
L.oan to MINECOFIN - - 35.812 35,323 35812 35,32%
— Sub-total (1) 1,501 1,276 35,812 35,323 37,313 '36,599
: Current
Loan to City of Kigali - 300 - - - 306
Loansto MININFRA: 4.009 4.359. - - 4,009 4,359
- ‘Loan to MINECOFIN - - - - -
Sub-total (2) 4,009 4,659 < - 4,009 4,659
Grand total (1+2) 5,510 5,936, 33,812 35,323 41,322, 41,259
—
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33.5. Lioan to City of Kigali

2020 2019
Frw Frw
At 1 July ' 1.576 876
Receivable for Well Springs Academy land - 850
Repayments (75} {150}
At 30 June 1,501 1,576

“The loan to City of Kigali is from the agreement for Kibagabaga - Kinyinya road project. bctween City of Kigali,
RSSB and Horizon Group where City of Kigali was responsible of contribution for the 60% of the total
exproprigtion cost evaluated for the branch connecting to RSSB and 50% for the branch connecting to Horizon
Group LTD investment sites, contribution of 100% cost for the study of road and contract management of all
coritracts related to this project which is road study and supervision services, road construction works and the
-expropriation related services. On 2] March 2019, an agreement between RSSB and City of Ki gali 1o provide for
the modalities of payment amounts due to. RSSB. by the City .of Kigali was signed, The amounts covered under
the agreement arg-as follows:

Details -Amount (Frw)
Advance:for the construction of Kibagabaga — Kinyinya.road 876,247.281
Compensation for plot transferred to Well Spring Academy 850.000.000
Total 1.726,247,281

It was agréed that payment would be made:-over a period of'six (6) years froth the financial year 2018/201 9'to the
financial year 2023:2024. Payment was to be executéd on a quarterly basis with a payment of Frw 75,000,000
per quarter..As -at 30 June 2020, a cumulative total of Frw 220,0000,000-had been settled by the City of Kigali.

33.2. Loan to MININFRA

2020 2019

Laoan for. Loan for Total. Loan for Loan for Total

CBD1  Partitioning CBD1  Partittonin

Infrastrncture  of Kicukire Infrastructure: - gof

pension Kieukiro

plaiza penston

plaia.
Frw Fiw Frw Frw Frw Frw
(’mi]lio_ns)' {milfions) {millions) {millions). (millions) (milliens)
Al July. 4010 140 4350 5,613 139 5,763
Repaymetits. {351 - (351) . (1,403) - (1,403)
AL30 June 3,859. __149 4,009 4.210 149: 4,359
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- 33.3. Loan.to MINECOFIN

The Loan to MINECOFIN relates to amounts advanced to Community Based Health Insurance. {CBHI) Scheme
during the year ended 30-June-2020 as per the movement shown below;

2020 2019
Frw Frw
" At1 July 35323 12,000
Additions. 10,000. 26,247
Repayments (9.511) _ (2.924)
- At 30 June (net) 35,812 35,323
During the year RSSB (medical scheme) made an additional advance of Frw 10,000,000 to CBHI for the year
ended 30 June: 2020 on behalf of MINECOFIN.. The ministry settied. Frw 9,511,155,501 during the year,
- ‘therefore the outstanding balance due from. MINECOFIN is Frw 35,811 8_82_,4.42
34. Mortgages loans
- .
: Pension Medical Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
- Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Friv
{millions) (imillions)  (millions) (millions)  {(millions) {millions)
At 1 July: 153 312 ) (6 147 306
Adjustment to opening _ _ ' . .
- balance {8) 6 & - (n 6
: Unallocated receipts-on - -
Mortgage loans - priot year 93 66: 93 o6
: Receipts during the year 97 (139) = - (87) (139)
e Unallocated receipts of _ - -
L Mortgage loans (78) {93) (78) (93)
Balance at the 3¢ June. 63 153 - {6) 63 147
— Impaifment provision - - - - - -
; -Net balance at 30 June ) 63 153 - (6) 63 147
*: -C_]assifitaﬁon._nf"Murtgage Ioans-(Naﬂ-currem i’s Current)
Pension schenie
AL 30 June 2020 At 30 June 2019
- Frw Frwv
' “Non-cureent. 26 64
Current 36 -89
- Total 63 153
i o8
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44. Revaluation reserve

The revaluation. surplus. Tepresents the surplus on the revaluation® of land and buildings and is non-
distributable Movements in the reserve are shown on the statement of changes-in equity

Pension Medical Total

Frw Frw Frw

{millions) {miltions) (miltions).

At1July 2018 254 4,252 4,506

At 30 June 2019- ' 254 4,252 4,506
At 1 July 2019 254 4,252 4,506

Revaluation gain/{loss) 328 2,260 2,587

At 30 Juneé 2020, _ 581 6,512 7,093,

45. Fair value reserve

The faii value reserve represents the surplus on the revaluation of available-for-sale equity-
investments and investment properties. This sueplus is non-distributable, Movements in the reserve
are.shown on the statement of changes i equity. The revaluation has no deferred tax impact as RSSB
is tax exempt by law,

‘Pension Medical Tatal
2020 2019 2020 2019 20200 2019
Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw Frw
(millions) {millions) (millions) {miltions) (millions} {millions)

AT July (A} 4,525 7293 12.376 10410 16,900 17.703
Allotment of increase {1715) (2,768) 3,833 1.966 2,118 {803y
in net assets during .
the year'- gain/({loss}
grisin’g from changes
m fair values of equity
in_ve_stmeqts___{B}
Allotment of increase 79,126 - (531} - 78,593 -
in net assets:durmg’
the year - gain/(loss)-
arising from change in
fair valug of
investienit properties
At 30 June (D=A+B) 81,936 4,515 15,677 12,376 97,613 16.500.

46, Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves are set out by decree law of 22 August 1974 concerning organisation of Socjal
Security. Article 15 of the Law stipulates that the. National Social Security Institutions provide the
following reserves for both the occupational hazards and pensions branches;

a) Pension Working: Capital reserve is equivalent. to a quarter of the total expenses of the pénsion’s
branch previous year

b) Pension Technical reserve should not be lower-than the total expenses of the branch for the last:
three years

¢) Occupational Hazards Technical reserve: must be equal to twelve times the total amount of
oceupational hazards paid during the year

d) Occupational Hazards Security reserve is equal to a quartet of the expenses incurred during the
last three years

e) Occupational Hazards Working capital resérvé should be equal to a quarter of the expenses of the
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Statutory reserves as at the end of the year were as follows:

Sub note 2020 2019
Frw Frw
{millions) (millions)
QOceupational hazard reserve -technical. 46.1 6 1., 168 .4'75:2'3:_1
Occupational hazard reserve <Security 46,2 7,006 6,377
'Occubatitmal Hazard reserve- Working capital 463 2,497 2,242
Sub-total (1) 70,670 55,899
Pension reseﬁ:e_— teclinical 46,4 501,390 .436,623
Pension reserve- working capital 46:5 _ 30,708. 24,064
Siib-total (2) 532,098 460,687
Grand total 602,768 516,586
46.1. Occuapational hazard reserve -technieal
Siuh note 2020 2019
Frw Frw
_ (millions) (millions)
At 1 July (A) 47281 35,052
Allotment of net income for the year (B) 46.1 (a) 13,887 12,229
At 30 June (C=A+B) 61,168 47,281
46,1 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve
Allotment for the year ended 30 June 2020 Amount (Frw)
{millions)
Occupational hazard benefit paid during the year (A)[Sée note 10.1] 1,157
Allocation of net income to Occupational hazard techmical reserve (A X-12) 13,887

Allotment for the yearended 30 June 2019

Amount (Frw)

(millions)
Oc¢cupational hazard benefit paid during the year (A) [See note 10.1] 1019
‘Allocation of met income to Occupational hazard téclinical reserve (A ¥ 12) 12,229
46,2, Occupational hazard reserve -Security
Sub note 2020 2019
Frw ‘Frw
{millions) {millions)
At 1 July (A) 6,377 5,880
Allotmient of net.income for the vear (B) 46.2 (a) 630 497
At 30 June (C=A+B) 7,006 6,377
46:2 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for-the year to reserve
A__I_I()tmcl_;t far: the year ended 30 June 2020 Amount (Erw)
(millions)
“Total oceupational hazard benefits expense 2017 624
Total otcupatignal hazard benefits expense 2018 875
Total oceupational hazard benefits expense 2019 [see note 10.1} 1,019
Total oceupational hazards beuefit expenses paid in the last three years: (A) 2,518
Allocation of net income of pension schieme to reserve (C=A x'23%) 630
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Alfotment for the year ended 30 June 2019

Total occupational hazard bénefits.expense2016.
Total cccupational _ha_z_ard_bem;:ﬁts- expense 2017
Total occupationat hazard benefits expense 2018

Total occupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the last three years.(A)

Allocation of nét.incomé of pension schemie to reserve (C=Ax25%)

46.3. Occupational hazard reserve- Working capital

Sub-noete.

At | July (A) _
Allotmient of nét income daring the year (B) 46.3 (a)

2020
Frw
(nillions)
2,242

255

Amount
(Frw)
{millions)
489

624

8§75

1,988

497

-2{}'1_9_
Frw
(mitlions)

219

At 30 June {C=A+B)

2,497

2242

46.3 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve

Allotment:for the year énded 39 June 2020

Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2019 (Frw) (A)[see note 10,1}
Allocation-of net income of pension scheme to resérve (Frw) (B=Ax25%)

Allotment for the year ended 30 June 2019

Total occupational hazard benefifs expense 2018 {Frw) (A)

Allocation of nét income of pension scheme fo réserve (Frw) (B=Ax25%)

-46.4. Peénsion reserve- technical

-Sub- note

At 1 July (A) _
Allotment of net income for the year (B) 46.4 (a)

2020
Frw

(millions)

436,623
64,768

Amount (Frw)
{millions)

1,019
‘255

Amount (Frw)
(miitlions)
875

219

2019
Frw
(millions)
382,926
53,696

At 30 June (C=A+B)

501,390

436,623

46.4 (d) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year
Allotmgnt of net income for the year-ended 30 June 2020
Total pension benefits paid 2017
Total pension benefits paid 2018

‘Total pension benefits paid 2019[see noté 10.1]
"Total benefits expense for the [ast three years (A)

Allgcatien of net income to pension technical reserve (B=A)

Amount (Frw)
(milligns)
17,531

20,662

26,575

64,768

64,768




ity

Allotinent of net income for the year ended 30 June 2019 Amount (Frw)

(mitlioris)
Total pension benefits paid 2016 15,503
Total pension benefits paid 2017 17,531
Total pension benefits paid 2018 20,662
Total benefits expense for the last three years (A) 53,696
Allocation of net income to. pension technical reserve (B=A) 53,696

46.5. Pension reserve- working capital

Sub- Note- 2020 2019

Frw Frw

(millions) (itlions)

A1 July (A) 24,064 18:898
Allotment of net income for the year (B) 46.5 (a) 6,644 5,166

-At 30 June (C=A+R) 30,708 24,064

46.5 (a) Reconciliation of allocation of net income for the year to reserve

Allotment of net income for the yearended 30 June 2020 Amount (Frw)
{millions)
Benefits paid to. pensioneis in 2019 (A) 26,375
Alllocation of net income to Pension working capital reserve forthe year (B=A%*25% 6,644
Allotment #f net income for the year ended 30 June 2019 Amount (Frw)
(millions)
Benefits paid-to pensioners'in. 2018 (A) 20,662
‘Allocation of.net income to Pension working capital reserve for the year (B=A%25% 5,166

47. Contingent liabilities

The Board is a litigant in various ¢ases for breach of éontract arising in the normal course of business
‘The directors are of the view that the Board has high chances of success :against the plaintiffs and
none of the cases mdmdual]y or in aggregate would have a 31gn1ﬁcant impact on the Board’s
operation The directors are confident that the Board shall receive favourable ruling from the:
outstanding cases Information on these cases has not been.disclosed as the ditectors consider that the
disclosure of the information could prejudice the Board’s position. The:cases in which the Board is a
litigant majorly relate to alleged breach of contracts that the Board entered into and members siiing
for their unsettled benefit claims:

Other than the liability to. pay future pensions and other- benefits, there were no contingent liabilities
of the Board at 30 June 2020,

48. Related parties

The Rwanda Social Security Board operates under the Ministry of Finance and Economic Plarming
(MINECOFIN). In accordance with Law No 45 of 2010 establlshmg the Rwanda Social Secunty-
Board and determining its mission, orgamzatlon and functioning, the Prime Minister appoints the
directors to the Board of RSSB. RSSB considers the Government of Rwanda (“GoR™) to be in a
position.to exercise significant influence over it, and therefore regards GoR and several of its bodies
as related parties: for the purpose of the disclosures required by TAS 24 (2009 Related Parties
Disclosures

RSSB. has elected to adopt:the exemptlon available in paragraph 25 of TAS 24, and therefore has not
provided detailed disclosure of'its transactions with GoR and its. agencies. A summary of the Board’ &
transactions with the-GoR and its bodies is included below:
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»  RSSB advanced amounts to the City of Kigali, Ministry of Infrastructure and Minjstry of
Finance and Economic Planning. Details of these advances. are disclosed. in note 33 to these
financial statements.

. RSSB-in the normal course of its investment and treasury operations during the year purchased
treasury bonds and bills as reflected in notes 30 and 31 to the financial statements. RSSB also
places term deposits and operates current bank accounts ‘with the following institutions which
are related parties;

- National Barik of Rwanda (BNR) which is the central bank of the Republic of Rwanda.

- Rwanda Development Bank (BRD) - RSSB held 37.74% of ordinary shares in BRD as. at 30
June 2020.

- Bank of Kigali (BK)— RSSB held 33.49% of ordinary shares. in BK as at 30 June 2020.
- Cogebanque SA — RSSB held 30.6% of ordinary shares in Cogebangue as at 30 June 2020.
- Zigama C88 - is a credit and savings bank under the Ministry of Defence (MINADEF).

The transactions described .above are.both collectively and individually significant to the financial
statements, '

49. Actuarial valuation

a) Pension and occupational hazard scheme
Backgreund and purpose of the actuarial valuation

The purpose of an.actuarial valuation is to review the long-term fihancial sustainability of a scheme.

RSSB therefore commissioned AON Hewitt limited to conduct actuarial valuation of the pension and

occupational hazard scheme as at 30 June 2020. Aon Hewiit Litd has issued a draft actuarial report
dated 16 February 2021.

The actuarial valuation report includes projections over the néxt 50 vears fromthe valuation date, i.e.
over the period 2020-2021 to 2069-20706 for:
f) the financial position of the Scheme. on a "going concern" basis, comparing the actual assets
held against a farget amount planned to be sufficient to pay the benefits;
ii) the planning or budgeting of contributions requiréd to bring the assets in line with the planned
target.
i) the contribution rate fequired to balance contribution income and expenditure (krown as
‘Breakeven Contribution Raie’)
iv) income and expenditure.
v) The *Balance of Fund’ as a multiple of expenditute {also known as the ‘Fund Ratio’)
vi) Dependency ratic and membership profile

The results of the actuarial valuation. of the Rwanda Pension and Occupational Hazard Scheme-.(".the
Scheme™) as at.30 June 2020 over are as summatised below:
1) Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits for the scheme.

The actuarial valuation shows that the pension and occupationat Kazards scheme had projected:
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits.of Frw. 5,709.2 billion compared to net assets
of at Frw 1,052.3 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a deficit of Frw 4,656.9 billion, as shown below:

i As at 30.June 2020

N _ _— e | Frw’ billions:
Net assets of the scheme ('A)' 1,052.3

|"Active members . - o {4,640.9)
Deferred mombers . S ' - . (716.4)
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Pensioners (351.9)

Total past service liabitities (B) o o ' T (5,709.2)

Short fall (G-B)

This corresponds to a funding ratic of 18 4%. This compares with a Scheme funding position of”
54.1% at the previous actuarial valuation as at-30 June 2016 (issued in January 2018).

Thie actuarial present value of benefits promised-on service as at the valuation.date is derived as the
discounted present value of projected expenditure in respect of accrued benefits, baséd on-
projected salary levels.

Pension branch

For Pension branch of the scheme, the actuarial Valﬁat'io'n shows that the branch had projected
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 5,673.9 billion compared to net assets
of at Frw 789:2 biltion af 30 June 2020, resulting to-a deficit of Frw.4,884.7 billion, as shown below:

As at 30 June 2020

_ T, i Frw? billions

Assets of the scheme (A} N ] 789.2

Past service Jiabilities owed | —

{present value of benefits promlsed onservice) _ _ o

“Active members - ' (4,614,8)

De'fei're_d.:m_ér_ribers. o o o " o (716.4)

. Pensioners e - e et : e : . iy o (342_"76

Total past service Liabilities (B) " T o R (5:673.9)

. .. . e B . . | i o E . B g | . 3

Short fall (A-B) o (4,884.7)

This corresponds to a fiinding ratio of 13.9%. This compares.with a funding ratio-of 41.1% at the
previous actuarial valuation.

‘Occupational hazard branch of the scheme
For Occupational hazard branch of the scheme, the actuarial valuation shows that.the branch had

projected actuarial présent value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 35.3 billion compared to net

-assets. of at Frw 263.1 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a surplus of Frw 227.8 billion; as shown
below:

I As at.30 June 2020
. y o . " ) Frw” billions
Assets of the scheme as at 30 June 2020. o i " 263 1
Past service liabilities (present value of benefits promlsed on serv:ce) IIIIIIIIIIIIIII T
Actwe members '''''' : e - SE— : ————— . (26.1)
TBensioners T T T ' a (9.2)
“Total past service liabilities B ' " T353)

The surplus of the-assets relative to the technical provisions is RWF 227.8bn for the occupational
hazards branch. This corresponds to.a funding ratio.of 745.5%, compared-to funding ratio of
1,100.9% at the previous actuarial valuation..
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Theé overall decline i the funding ratio of the scheme compared to prévious actuarial valuation is
attributed to a nitmber of changgs to the Scheme since the.previous. actuarial valuation was.
completed as at 30 June 2016; as well as changes in the data,  methodology and assymptions. This
has led to changes i in the results since the previous actuarial valuation. The main changes to the.
Scheme during the inter-valuation period were outlined in the actuarial report to-as follows:.

a) The last pension increase in the Scheme was awarded in 2018 where the Minimum Pension was
increased from RWF 5,200 per month (which was applicable from 2002) to RWF 13,000 per
‘month and other pension benefits increased as well.

b) Prior to 2015, deferred members who had contributed but-did not make any claim-on their
pensions for a 'peri__od_ of 10'years and above would forfeit their benefits. However, new laws
with effect from 2015 have reversed this approach and now anyone who contributed and who
¢claims their pension everi after a 10-year period, will have their acctued ri ghts preserved.

Funding position excluding deferred members

The overall shortfall of the asséts relative 1o the téchnical provisions excluding deferred members

is RWF 3,940.5 billion for the Scheme. This corresponds to a funding ratic of 21.1%. The shortfall

of the assets relative to the technical provisions excluding deferred members is RWF 4,168.3

billion for the Pension Branch. This corresponds to-a funding ratio of 15.9%.

Contributions required to bring the assefs in line with the plaimed target (the required future
service contribution rate)

The required future service contribution rate is the rate of contribution that would normally be:
appropriate if the Scheme had no-surplus or shertfail and the assets were exactly equal to-the:
technical provisions-at the valuation date. The requiréd total contribution rate. under the Pension
Branch to cover the cost of benefits aceruing over the next year, excluding expensés of the
Scheme, is 27.1% of pensionable salaries (The rate is-before any allowance to cover the
amortisation of the.deficit) as shown below: '

Pénsfon‘- branch

Required contribufions for: o Yage of pensionable salary

Future service benefits under _pensmn branch ' ' f _ 27.1 |

Administrative expenses under:pension branch’ . ~ 0.3
unger pensic . SR 35

This compares with coniributions of approximately 16. 6% of pensmnable salaries at the previous
valuatton It should also be.noted that only 6% of pensionable salaries is currently being paid by
the employer and employee jointly.

The increase in contribution rate over the valuation period under the Pension Branch is mainly due
to the change if financial assumptions and demographic assumptions (ageing population and
increase in life expectancy)..

Qccupational hazard branch

The required total contribution rate under the Occupational Hazatd Branch to-cover the cost of
benefits accruing. over the next year, excluding éxpenses of the Scheme,.is 0.2% of pensionable

‘salaries (The rate is befose any allowance to lower the surplus).

Required contributions for: _ . Yeage of pensionable salary
| Euture service benefits under occupational __haza_rd branch ' o 0.2
Administrative expenses under occupational hazardbranch ~~ ~ 5 ' 0.1

Histotically, administrative expenses.represent on average 0.4% of pensienab]e salaries. These:
expenses were apportioned between the pension and occupational hazard branches in a 75%/25%

split:
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3) The contribution rate required lo balance contribution income and expendiiure:(knawn.as

‘Breakeven Conttibution Rate’)

The breakeven contribution rate represents the Pay-As-You-Go (PAYG) contribution rate as if the
Scheme was unfunded and only considers money-in.and money-out without future investment
returns. The contribution-weighted average break-even coniribution rate over the projection period
is around 23,4%.of pensionable salary as compared to the current 6% of contributions.

The projected short term and long-ferm break-even contribution rates required to balance
contribution income with expenditure on benefits and expenses each year over a 50-year projection
period are shown below:

Short-term break-even contribution rates:

Year S2021: 20221 20231 2024 20257 20260 2027 2028 2029‘ 2030

TPension | 6.60%  3.30% | 3.10% | 3.20% 320%‘.5 0% T3 40% | 3 50% 3609 T E00%

‘Occupational ! 0.20% | 0.20%  0.20% : 0.20% 0’)0% P 0.20% § 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.20%
.hazard

Scheme | 6.80% | 3.50% | 3.30% | 3.40% | 3.40% f 350% | 3.60% | 3:70% | 3.80% | 4.20%

Long-term break-evén coniribution rates:

Year e 20300 20407 2050 - 2060, 2070
Pension ' 6.60% 400% | 970% |  27.80% |  33.00%%  18.70%
Occupational hazard | 0.20% 020% '  020% 0.20% 0.20%1  0:20%
‘Schere | 680% .  420% 10.00% . 28.00%  3330% 18.90%

These compare with the current-8% salary contributioni fate of which 6% in respect of the pension
branch and 2% is in respect of the occupational hazard branch.

The current contribution rate seems to be sufficient to méet benefits on a PAYG basis until the
year 2038. The lower Break-even contribution rate at the start 'of the projection period reflects the
lower average service (i.e. those éntitled to a'Tump sum instead of the mote costly pension
payments) and part subsidy by the surplus in cccupational hazard branch as well as covering.
pension payments by a large active population earlier in the pro;eetlon After 2038; the current
contribution rate is no longer sufficient as. evidenced by the rising required break-even contribution
rate.

The cuirent penision branch contribution rate is expected to be sufficient to benefits on a PAYG
basis until the year 2036. However, after 2036, the pension branch break-even contribuition rate
increases to 35.6% of pensionable salary in 2056/2057 assuming that there will be fewer active
menbers in the future to bear the cost of benefit payments and ¢xpenses-thereby clearly indicating
that the current contribution raté of 6% would not be-adequate over the projection period. The
occupational hazaid Branch break-even contribution tate is low for the duration 6f'the: projection-
period to reflect the low levél of benefits curreritly claimed from this section of the Scheme.

4) Membership profile and dependency ratio

Age.distribution of active membership as at 30-June 2020 is shown below:

Agebracket(vears) | 1620 | 2030 . 3040 40-50 50-60° >60

Number of active members. ;| 20,401 200471 204,903 102,781 - 42315 10,398,

The dependency ratio shows how the membershlp profile is expected to change over time and is
calculated as 4 projected ratio of pension beneficiaries to active members, The dependency ratio is
expected to-increase and then stabilize at-around 120% reflecting the Scheme maturing over the
projection period:and the ageing of the population as shown below:

Year 202042021 | 2021/2022 | 2030/2031 2040/2041 | 2050/2051  2060/2061 2070!20?]"

Activemembers | 587.269 | 639456 | 1,097,689 | 1149344 ; 1,013,552 | 862,940 971205

Deferred members | 925,028 | 916,993 |  85G.201 | 763,115 647,601 | 504,600 : 343,605
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o

Pensioners .

38338

34,584

Dependency ratio.

T,

9%

102,959

273,629

650,594

1,040,366

1,161,163

4%

64% |

121% ¢

Active:membership is projected to increase rapidly initially due-to:the high assamptions for new
entrants and lew number-of pensmners It starts to fall after year 205 0 due to the hi gher number of
pensioners.and the slower increase in new entratits,

The deferred members are projected 1o decrease over time enly considering the existing deferred
members without allowing for any new members and a zero-withdrawal rate has been assurned to
reflect the maridatory nature of the Schéme.

The pensioners are projected Yo increase gradually over time to reflect the retirement of the
existing active membership, retirement of new-entrants in the:active- mémbership-and retiremetit of

Income and expenditure

deférred members. It also teflects the fact that pensioners are living longer tlian expected:

The long term projections 6f future income and expenditure from financial year 2020/2021 to
financial year 2070/2071 are shown below:

| 202012021 | 203072031 |:2040/2041 | 205012051 | 206012061 | 2070/2071
_ _ I _ Frw' billions o N
Assets at start of the year 1,052 3,726 9,204 (850} 1 (81,609 | (271 854)
Income _ s _ _ e
Contributions 167 518 981 1,485 2,619 6,087
Benefits payrhent 131 233 L,IS3 5095 10,702 13931
Expenses 2 36 69! 104 ; 183 426
Total outgo 143 2691 1222 5199 | 10,885 14,357
Operatmg surplnsf(deficlt) 24 249 (241) (3,714) l (8;266) (8,270)
Investment income _ 68 246 | 58'}' (171) (5,483) (17,659)
Assets at the end of'the vear 1,144 ;. 4,221 ¢ 9,640 (4,735) | (95,358) | (297.783)

Expenditure is projected to be more than income on an annual basis from the year 2043. The

shortfall: will be finan¢e out of borrowing (hence. the negative interest).

projected income hecomes negatlve as a result of exhaustion of assets.around 2049 assuming the

At branch level, the pension branch has-higher income than expenditure until around 2039/2040.
After 2040, the projected expenditure is hi gher-than the projected income. This is due tothe

scheme demographlcs_ of having higher number of beneficiaries many of whom are currently above

normal refirement age and the effect of the lower contributions than required. The assets held are
projected to reduce to become negative due ta incmas_ing_beneﬁts_ paymenis and expenses:

The occupational hazard branch is projected to:have higher income than expenditure over the

whole projected period.

The ‘Balance of Fund’ as a multiple of expenditure (also known.as the ‘Fund Ratio’}

The fund ratio shows the projected balance of the fund at the start of the year expressed as a
multiple of expenditures on benefits and other administrative costs expected in that year. The
projected fund ratios have been calculated assuming the current contribiition rates remain

urichanged and allowing for-futufe investinent returns and-are.as follows:

| . ] 2021 2030 2040 2050 2060 | 2070
Fundratio - Pension branch 571961 4. (25 (10.). (236)
“Fund ratio — Occupational hazard branch | 6371 968 1614 2783 4459 5329
Scheme 7.4 13.8° 7.6 (02)1 (7.5 (18.9)

The scheme is"projected.to continue to grow for several years and peak in the financial year
2029/2030 after which it is projected to decline and be¢ome insolvent at around financial year
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2049/2050. This is'because the pension branch is expected in'the long term to pay out pension
benefits to an increased number.of members while: insufficient contributions are being made to pay.
for the required benefits.

At branch level, the pension branch is projected to continue to grow and peal at financial year
2023/2024 after which it is-expected to decline-until it becomes insolvent around financial year
2046/2047, The occupational hazard branch has a net surplus and is projected to continue to grow
and remain solvent over the projected period due to the projected low level of benefit payments.

Methods and key assumptions-used

Projection methodology

The modeél used for projection used as a starting point the clean data and applied the labour force
assumptions for the development of the future contributory population.

The model used was based on a cohort. approach using the flow method. for generating future
generations of pefisioners on a single age basis, i.e. the identification of each new pensioner and the
recording of ‘the average period of past pension credits and the -average earnings of each cohort;
Future new entrants were assumed to have the same average salary as the relevant cohort at the
valuation date but allowing for the rate of earnings inflation assumption,

Thie present value of the liabilities was calculated by projecting cashilows over the whole lifetime of
the existinng membership, i.e. effectively allowing for every existing member to die. For the year on
year income and-expenditure-projection, only a snapshot of the cashflows over a projection period of
50.years-was illustrated.

‘The same active member pensionable service propomons at the valuvation date for the projection
period ‘were used. Members. with more than 15 years service were. projected 1o receive. pension
benefits; whereas members with less than 15 -years® service were projected to receive lump sum
‘benefits, as per the tules of the Scheme:

Active: members were grouped by age and sex based on who would receive pension and Iump. sum
benefits based on the June 2020 membership data taking into account the members' projected service
at retirement. We assumed that these-groups would-apply to future new entrants during the projection
period.

Each cohort of future new entrants was' assumed to follow the same age, gender, sa]ary-and'maﬁ_tal_
status distribution of existing actives for the different age- groups. The distribution .of new entrants by
age ;and sex. would reflect that observed at the valuation-date and it was assumed that these
distributions remain constant throughout tlie projection period.

The Projected Unit Method has been -used to calculate the future service contribution rate. This
calculation draws on the .same assumptions: used for the technical provisions.

The Projected Unit Method (PUM) is oné of the common methods-used by actuiaries to calculate a
contribution rate for a funded schéme:. This method caloulates. the present value of the ‘benefits
expected to accrue to-members over a control period (often one year) following the valuation date.
The present value is usually expressed as a percentage of the members’ :pensit)n'able' pay. It allows for
projected future inereases to pay through to retirement of date of leaving service.

Key assumptions made
*  Margin for adverse experience

An allowance has been made for adverse experience in. both the financial and demographic
-assumptions used to calculate technical provisions,
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Firancial assumptions

A summary’ of the key economic and expense assumptions adopted for the valuation of the
Scheme as at 30 June 2020, together with the long-term assumptions adopted for the previous.
valuafion as at 30 June 2016 are shown below:

Key assnmptions

Valuation as at 30 June 2020

Valuation as at-30 June 2016

Price inflation

'10.0%:p.a. for the first year;
6.0% p.a. in'the second year;.

the remainder of the projection
period.

5.0% p.a. in the'third year and for |

'9.0% p.a. for the fifst year; 7.0%
p:a- inthe second year; 5.0% p.a:
in the'third year and for the
remainder of the projection
period

Earnings inflation.

12.0%.p.a. for the first year;
-8.0% p.a. in the second year;:

7.0% p.a. in thethird year and for

‘the remainder of the projecticn
period.

' 10.0% p.a. for the first year;

8.0% p.a. in the second year;

: 6:0% p.a. in the third year and for

the rémainder of the projection
period

Investment feturn

- 11,0% p.a. for the first year;
:9.0% p.a. for the second year;
7.0% p.a. in the third year and for -
the remainder ofthe projection
period

i0%pa -

“No allowance'

‘Expenses

7% of contribution income
assumeéd to be funded in future

each year

10% of contribution income:
- assumed to be funded in future
“each year

The long-term economic assumptions adopted are-the same for all future years of the projection.

Demographics

A summary of the key demographic assumptions adopted for the valuation of the Scheme as at
30 June 2020, together with the long-term assumptions adopted for the previous valuation as.at

30 June 2016 are shown below:

Key assumptions

Valuation as at 30 June 2020 |

Valuation as at 30 June 2016

Labour Market:
(Increase in‘Scheme.
methbership}

Increase of 12%:in the: first year
of the-prajections, reducing to.a
long-term assumgtion 6f 2.0% a
year over 4 10-year period. and.
-contiruiiig at 2,0% p.a. for the
remainder of the projéction
period. .

_M_brta]ity as_sump_ﬁons.

Rwanda Mortality Table; 2012- |
.2016 scaled by 60%; with an
allowanice for future annual
improvements of 0.8% for males
and 1% for females

" Increase of 10% in the first year
-of the 'projecf_io_ns, redicingto a
long-term assumption of 2.5%a
year over a 1(-year period. and

continuing at 2.5% p.a. for the’
rethainder of the projection

2016; with an allowance for
future annual improvements.of
1.25% formalesand 1.5% for

Lo females

Withdrawal R.a.tcs. |

Same as last valuation

¢ No allowdnce was made for early

withdrawal from active service.
However, an implicit allowance
was captured inthe labour
market assutnption.

{Pension Branch)

A rate-of 0.01% for active
members between ages 20 and 64

~ Arate of 0.01% for active
members between ages 20 and 60

Ihcapacity Rates
{Occupational Hazards Branch)

Sate as last valuation

Penﬁan_ent .[ncapé.city Rate of
0.005% for both males and
females between the ages of 20
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- Key assumptions =~ Valuation as at 30 June 2020 ;  Valuation as at 30 June 2016
o o and 60, |
: | Assumed that 5% of future
o : permanent incapacity will be-full
E 'incapaci't'y. (based on 100%
E incapacity rate) and 95% will be
- partial ihcapat:ft_y based on a 40%
’ 1 incapaqity- rate),
- Workers Medical Benefits An uplift-of 30%to-the projected | An uplift of 33% to the projected.
: (OQecupational Hazards Branch) Permanent Incapacity Permarient Intapacity
- expenditure inorder to make-an | expenditure in ordérto make an
— allowance forthe Workers allowange for the Workers
5 N Medical Benefits. Medical Benefits,
Constant Care Supplement No allowsance * No allowarice
_ (Pension Branch and
- Occupational Hazards Branchj o . . L o
: Retirement Rates Same as last valuation Non-Uniformed members retire
‘at age 60 and that Uniformed
i members retire at.agé 50.
H
E No allowance has been made for
— : early retirements as the:
; experiénce indicated that few
. o . o _ -such benefits are paid.
— Family Statistics — propottion 76% of male members and 62% | 80% of tnale members-and 65%
: married * of female membiers:are mariied 1 of female members aré martied
. i at all ages o __at all ages. L
_ Family Statistics — Age A 4-year age differencebetween | A d-year age difference between
difference " membersand spouses has been merbers and spouses has been
adopted, with hushands older adopted, with husbands older’
than wives, with a 27-yearage than wives, with a 32-year age
L  difference between male parents. ; difference between male parents
: ' and children and a 23-year age and-¢hildren-and a 28-year age
: ; differenice between female difference between feinale
- _ N % _____ parents and children, ‘parents and children.
" Fami!y S_tatisﬁcs—' Nu_r_nb_er of & .S:'ame\ as.last valuation Unmarried members have two
dependants i i dependents, that is, both parents,
—_— - and that married members have
: three dependents;:a spouse and
two dependent children,
b} L
‘We have not. made‘any
allowances for remarriage rates
_ . and we have assunied that orphan’
ﬁ ’ -benefits cease at-age 25,
»  Deferred members
— The previous valuation results did not allow for deferred members who:left active employment
‘before July 1994; The previous actuary was-provided with 641,018 deférred member records, of
which 208,754 last contributed before Fuly 1994.
- At the valuation date, all the deferred members even those prior to 1994 have been included.
-




n  Investment returns.

In determining: the investment return assumption, an dllowance for the benchmark allecation set
- out in the Fund’s Investment Policy (third edition) and expeécted returns on ¢ach asset ¢lass has
: been made. A long term expected investment return of 6.4% per annum was obtained;

The previous valuation-constructed the investment return assumption by adding a margin to the
ey price- inflation assumption whereby a long-term margin ‘of plus 2:0% p.a. in addition to price
': inflation was:used to get an investment return assumption of 11% p.a. for the first year, 9% p.a.
for the second year, 7% p.a. in the third year and for the remainder of the projection period.

-~ The net effective rate in service would be -0.6% in the long term which is lower than the
previous valuation,

v Earnings inflation

The previous. valuation assumed that the rate of earnings inflation to be 10.0% p.a. for the first
year; 8.0% p.a. for the second year; 6.0% p.a. forthe third year; and remaining at 6.0% p.a. for
the remainder of the projection period. This was equivalent to the price-inflation assumption plus.
a 1.0% p.a. margin. '
The current valuation assumes that ‘the_:_- rate of eamings inflation to be 12.0% p.a. for the first
year; 8.0% p.a. for the second year; 7.0% p:a. for the third year; and remaining at 7.0% p.a. for
the remainder of the projection perlod This is equivalent.to the price inflation assumption plus.a
2.0% p.a. margin. The higher margin was derived based on the data analyms

s Pension-increase

The current: valuation makes an allowarice of 1% per annum for any incréases in benefit
payments or minimum pensions as such increases are provided on a discretionary basis based on
ey our analysis of past.increases and following a request by RSSB.
The previous valuation did not include any allowance for periodic increases to benefit paymenits.
v Expenses
The expense.assumption is-based on ourfindings from the Annual Report & Accounts during the
inter-valvation period. The actuarial assumption is 7% p.a. of contribution -income for the
projection period.

This compares to the previous actuarial. valuation expense assumption of 10%. a year of
contribution income for the projection period which reflected higher expenses. recorded at that
time.

o Labour market

The current valuation assumss that the active membership of the -Scheme increases by 12%.in the
first year reducing to a long term assumption of 2.0% over a 10-yeat period- (i.e. using a declining
scale from 12% to 2% at the end of the 10:years); and continuing at 2.0% for the remainder of the-
projection period. The long-term assumption. reflects the combined effect of increases in the.
—_ employed population and increases in coverage that might be expected during theperiod.

The previous valuation assumed that the active membershlp of the Scheme inereases by 10% in

the first year reducing to a fong-term assumption of 2.5% over a 10- -year period; and continuing
- at 2.5% for the remaindeér of the p!’O_] ection period.

The short-term assumptions adopted reflect the high numbers of new entrants to the Scheme in
recent years.. The long-term assumption. reflects. the combined effect of increases in the total
- population, total employed population-and increases in the-coverage of the Scheme.

It is assumed that-these high levels will not continue over the longer-term as Rwanda is the most
densely populated country in East Africa {and Africa); and so it is likely that the populatlon
growth will begin to plateau during the projection period. However, it is expected that the formal
sector: will expand during. the projection period; and therefore creating more gradual increase
each year.
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Mortality

The current valuation assumes meortality experience in line with the ‘Rwanda Mortality Table;.
2012-2076" scaled by 60% with an allowance for future annual improvements of 0.8% for males
and 1.0% for females A 60-year old male pensioner is.assumed, on average, to live 1o age 84.4
years and under a 60-year old female pensioner is assumed, on average, to live to'age 85.4 years.

The previous valuation assumed mortality expefience in line with the ‘Rwanda Mortality Table;
2012-2016" with an allowance for future annual improvements- of 1.25% for males and 1.5% for.
females. The new Rwanda specific mortality table had been constructed using RSSB data.

Incapadity rafes

The incapacity rates reflect the proportions of :active, deferred and. pensioner members who
‘become eligible to (start t0) feceive Incapacity Benefits at each age as a result of occupational
disease or accident.

The valuation assumes an Incapacity Rate, of 0.06% for both males and females between the ages
of 20 and 60 based on a 10-yearanalysis of annual claiti payirients. K

The previous valuation assumed a permanent incapacity rate of 0.005% for both males and
females between ages: of 20 and 0.,

‘The difference comes. from the fact that all incapacity claims were considered instead of focusing
orily on permanent incapacity since the data was relativély scarce for-such beénefits and unlikely
to'be credible.

b) Medical scheme:

Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation
The purpose of an actuarial valuation is to review the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme,
RSSB therefore commissioned Zamara Actuaries, Administrators and Consultants Limited to conduct

actuarial valuation of the. medical benefits insurance scheme as at 30 June 2020. Zamara Actuaries,

Administrators anid Consultants Limited have issued a draft actuarial report dated 03 February 2021.

The core basis projections over the next 40 years from the valuation date, i.e. over the period 2020-

20271 10 20392040 is as-shown below:

Financial year | Total Population | Total Contribution. - Total Benefit : Accumulated
! Size Income (Frw? | Expenditure | ‘Fund
| millions) (Frw’ millions) (Frw! millions)

301972620 166273 513357 57,557 296,025

202072021 171,472 56,599 31.078 339,990

"2021/2022° 176,816 [ 60,500 35,884 386,295 |

20222023 182339 64,550 | 415500 434,383

2023/2024 188,051 68,740 482601 " 483.445

202472025 193,966 73,086+ TR 5N 535,403

2025/2026 200.144 77584 0 65,714 579,781

2026/2027 206,496 | 82,226 | 77.029 . 623,668

2027/2028 2137156 786,980 90,605 | 661.492

202872629 220,069 1,830 106,906 | "689,960 |

2025/2030 237317 | 96,742 126,569 704,788

2030/2031 234,863 101,692 | 150,317 ~700.537

2031/2032. 242,703 106,660 179,056 | 670,323

5032/2033 S 250,829 111,622 213,898 | 605.47]

2033/2034 i 1,352 116.480 © 256,327 | 94,8

303472035 v 121,228 308,076




b

2035/2036 277,713 [ 125,765 3715197 77,300

203672037 2874837 U067 49073 | (261,261

2037/2038 o700 134238 7 544469

208872039 TTTTTTR08 54T 137,973 661,589 1 (1,236,220 |

3039/2040 319,784 141,350 805,903 (1,922.116)

The projected fund will be depleted by 30 June 2036 \n;fith the deficit growing exponentially until the:
end of the projected perjod.

For the first seven years of the projection period, annual contributions are expected to exceed annual
claims, however, after this, annual claims are expected to exceed annual contributions as the assumed
rate of claims escalation exceeds the.rate of salary growth. For the- year ending 30-June 2027, total
claims are -expected 1o represent 93.7% of total gross contributions income before allowing for
expenses of the scheme. In the following year ending 30 June 2028, the total claims are projected to.
exceed total gross confributions and the tilisation ratio is 104.2%

From the year ending 30 June 2028 to 30 June 2030, the projected investment income will be:
sufficient to megt the shortfall caused by increasing claim costs as well as projected expenses of the:
scheme.

After the year ending 30 June 2030, net cashflows are projected to be negative. This differs from the
projection as at 30 June 2016 where the scheme was projected to remain in a. positive:cashflow
position for 55 years in the future. This difference is mainly- attributable .to the worse than expected
claims escalation that resulted from an upward revision of tariffs. Claims management solutions are.
essential to improving the long term health of the scheme.

Methodalogy dnd key dssumptions used

Methodology

The projection model vsed considered the evolation of the contributing mémbers, which forms the
basis. for projecting the future primary cashflows of the schemeé. The. primary cashflows were then.
used to model the fliture retained funds of the scheme; by considering projections of future investment
returns and expenses.

The membership of the scheme has been segregated into employees from the public sector, employees.
from the private sectorand retlrees in assessing the future evolution of the scheme. The bases used for
the various: projections have been arrived at as a result of detailed analysis on data and experience’
over the past five years as this is most likely to reflect future experience. However, long termn
expectations based on fegional and global benchmarking as’ well .as macro-economic:- factars have
been used in deterinining the final sét of assumptions for these projections.

Key assumptions used
Below is a sammary of the key assumptions used in preparing these projections:

Demaographics.
_Assumption Value used in valuatlon as at 30 June 2020
Membership growthrate. | 2.60%
Nev.\;-'entrarits"pro'portion (_pér"age) T Based on da!a distributing the new entrants in a given
o _ _ i year into.a suitable age
Mortality rates ' ~ | Rwanda Mortality Table - May 2017
Refirement rates. j R " "Stepped retirement rates for different age group§ """""""""""""" -
Salary growth rate public. 1'5.90% T
Salary-growth rate private Co 4o
Pension growth rate o B B ET 7 o
Workmg populatlon comrtbutlon rate' """""""""" 15.0% of basic sal?ry ''''''''''''''''''''''''''''
Pensioriers contribution rate 17.5% of ';'i'ensibﬁ T

127




o

Economic.

Assumption 1 Value used in-valuation as at'30 June 2020

_Inﬂa_t'idn_ T — p——————— 10% in the first year, 6% in the second year and 5%

_ T e .. from year 3 onwards

Investme_nt r_a_tg of return _ ! 8.9%

Other inicome S— PES—— .. 0_43%__0fcomributions

“Administrative expenses i 12% of contributions

Statutory CBHI contributions. T 109 of contribution s o

Claims

Assumption Value used in valuation as at 30 June 2020

Cost Component. T Annual Claims escalation rate | Average Cost per Affiliate.
— : : e e Member (Frw)
Consultation: 9.8% 22.867

“Laboratory tests T . o 9.7%. 36,620

Medical itnaging =~ '_ 4 o ' '2'1-.1%: 13,5!3-
Hospitalization T _ e 14.0% _ o 6,242 .
Pracedures and matcrla]s § .2'0,5%'. _ 29,710

Other consuni;bles ) _ 2.5% N 2,650
Med]cn;;;. ' o 10.8% o 10,535
Pharmacy . 7 A S ..40‘.]:?] .........................

50. Events after thie reporting period

Other than, the performance of actuarial valuations as at 30 June 2020 of the pension and medical
schemes in February 2021, there ‘aré no reportable subsequent events. The results of the actuarial
valuations have been‘disclosed in note 49 to these financial statements

51. Financial risk management-

The Board has exposure to the: following risks from its use of financial instruments:

o  Market risk,

*  Liquidity risk,

*  Creditrisk, and

» Capital managemerit risk

Included below ‘is information about the Board’s exposuie to each of the above risks, the Board’s.

objectives, policies and processes for méasuring and ‘managing the risks and ttie Board’s management
of capital.

‘Risk management framework

The Board’s. Board of Directors has overall. responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the

Board’s risk- management framewosk. The Board has established an: Audit .and Risk Committee, and.

the Risk Department, which are responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management-
-policies -in tlieir specified areas. All Board committees have non-executive mémbers -and report.
regularly-to the Board of Directors on their activities.

The Board’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the

Board, to set appropriate risk limits and controis, and to. monitor risks and adherence to: limits. Risk
management pol[mes and- systems are reviewed regularly to, reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Board through its training and management standards and
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procedures, aims to develop. a disciplined and. constructive control environment; in which all
-employees. understand their roles and obligations.

The Board’s Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Board's:
risk management policies and procedures, and for reviéwing the adequacy of the risk management.
framework in relation to the fisks. faced by the Boaitd. The Audit and Risk Comiiittee is assisted in
these functions by Internal Audit.and Risk functions,

Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hdoc reviews of rtisk management: controls and
procedures, the results-of which are reported to the'Audit-and Risk Cominittee

a) Market risk

Market risk is the.risk that changes in miarket prices, such as investment prices, interest rates arid.
foreign exchange rates will affect the Board’s income of the value -of its holdings of finaneial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is'to manage and control market risk exposures
within the acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on investment.

Managenient of market risks

Market risk arises ftom a decrease in the market value of a portfolio of financial instruments caused
by adverse movements. in the market variables such as equity, bonds and property prices, currency
exchange rates and interest rates.

The Beard grants authority to take on market risk exposure to the Management Investment Committee
(MIC). This committee manages this risk through the guidelines set out in the Board’s investment
policy.

Egquity price risk

The Board is exposed to equity securities price tisk through its investmeiits in quoted. and unquoted
shares. The Board’s Investment cofmittee diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the pottfolio is
done ih accordance with the-guidelings set out in the:Board’s investment policy. All shares held by the
Board are either quoted on Rwanda Stock Exchange and Nairobi Securities: Exchanges or unquoted.
The table below shows the effect of share price sensitivity on the surplus for the year based on the.
share price volatility as at 30 June 2020;

Change in share  Effect on:surplus Effect on

price % surplus

Pension Medical

2026 2020

Frw Frw

‘(millions) (millions)

Equity investments at fair value through profit-or less +/-8% 8,273 sy
2019 2019

Frw Frw

Equity _in_ve_stme_nt_s'at':;fair._value through profi't or loss +/-8% 7.858 268

Property price risk

Thie Board is exposed to property price risk through its investinents in real estate properties, The
Board's Investment committee diversifies its portfolie. Diversification of the portfolio.is done in
accordance with the guidelines set out in the Board’s investment policy. The Board undertook a
valuation of its-investment property on 24 June 2019 and adépted valuations of investment arid
administrative propetties as-at 1.July 2019.

The table below shows the effect of property price sensitfvity on the:surplus for the year;

Change in. Effect on surplus  Effect on surpius
property price %

Pension Medicai
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2020

Frw

{millions)

Investment property +-8% 16,470

2019

Frw.
{millions).

Investment property +/-8% 9,006

Currency risk

2020
Frw
(mitlions)
1,015

2019
Firw
(millions).
1,057

The Board is exposed to currency risk through transaétions in foreign currencies. ‘The Board.
transactional exposures give rise to foreign currency gains and losses that are recognised inthe
statement of comprehensive income: In' respect of monetary assets.and [iabilities in foreign currencies,
the Board ensures thai its net _exposure- is kopt to an acceptab[e levei by~ matchmg forelgn currency

through the Investrnent Commlttee “The Board operates wholly within Rwanda and its assets and
liabilities are. reported in Rwanda Francs, although it maiiitains some of its assets and trades with

banks in foreign currencies.
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€) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Board if a customer or ¢ounterparty to a financial instrument
fails to imeet its contractual obligations, and afises principally from the Board’s loaris and-advances, trade and
othér receivables, deposits with commercial bariks and investinents in government and corporate bonds. For
risk management reporting purposes, the Board considers. all elements of credit risk exposure such as
individual obligator default risk, country and sector risk.

For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on. trading securities. is managed independently, but
reported.as a component of market risk exposure.

Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors has de]egated responsibility for the management of credit risk to- its Management
Investment, Committee. The Investments Department is responsible for oversight of the Board's credit risk,
including:

«  Formulating credit policies, covering collateral requirethents and credit assessments, risk grading and
reporting. Doclithentary, legal procedures and comipliance with. régulatory and statutory requirements
is done in consultation with the Board's Legal and Compliance Department.

»  Establishing the authorisation structure for the approvl and renewal of credit facilities. Authorisation
limits are -allocated to. the Managemient Investment Committee. Larger facilities require approval by
the Board of Directors as appropriate.

s  Reviewing compliarice of investment mix with agreed exposure limits, including those: for selected
industries, couniry risk and product types. The Board’s Investment Comimittee is responsible: for
monitoring the credit quality of investments and ensuring that appropriate corrective action is taken
and providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best practice
throughout the Board in the management of credit risk.

The Investment department is required to implement.the Board’s credit policies and procedures, with credit
approval authorities delegated from the Board’s Board of Directors. The Investinent departmént is responsible
for the quallty and performance. of the Board's investment portfolio-and for monitoring and controlling all
credit risks.in the Board’s portfolio, including those subject to Board approval.. Regular audits of the
Investment department and the Board's credit processes are undertaken by the Internal Audit departinent.
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d) Capital risk management

The primary. source of capital used by the Board is member ‘contributions and income from investments. For
regulatory purposes, the Medical -division’s capital includés both Capital and retained earnings. By the nature of
its.establishment, the medical division does not pay dividends. Its equity is managed to safeguard its. ability to pay
‘members medical benefits. Other objectives when managing its capitat are:

o to comply withthe capital requirements as set out in the Insurance Regulations;
¢ tocomply with regulatory selvency requirements as setf out in the Insurance Regulations; and

* to safeguard the medical scherhe®s ability to continue:in operational continuity, so that it-¢an continue to
pay benefits to its members.

In 2008, Law No, 52/2008 governing the o'rganisati'on of insurance.business in Rwanda (“the Insurance Law”)-.
was promulgated. The Insurance Law requires entities providing short term insurance to hold a minimum
level of paid up-capital of Frw 1 billion. It also sets regulatory solvency thresholds for insurance companies,
based on prescribed admissibility criteria for assets and iiabilities. The regulatory selvency requirements. were
effective in 2011.

The pension fund considers its reserves comprising of statutory resérves and aceumulated members funds as.
its. ‘equity”.. The primary objective in managirg those reserves is to ensure that adequate solvency is
mdintained for purposes of future benefit payments to members. The level of statutory reservesis legislated as
set out. under Note 45: Qther than for those reserves, the fund is not required o meet-any other external capital.
requirements. The fund carries out periodical actuarial assessiments to assess its actuarial sotvency.

52. Other complententary information

RSSB financially performed better in 2020 compared to the previous year of 2019. The-Key Performance:
Indicators for the year ended 30 June-2020 and 30 June 2019 for each scheme are iliustrated in the table;

Key performance indicators 2020 2019
Pension Scheme o

Return on investment 11% 4%
Return on investment. (excluding fair 4% 4%
value gain on investment properties)

Growth in pet assets _ 23% 13%
Growth in net assets (exeluding fair 14% 13%
value gain ow investment properties)

Operating ratio ' 4% 4%
Beneﬁts to.contributions 30% 29%.
Medical Scheme

Reéturn orni investment 7% %
Growth in net assets 14% 13%:
Operating ratio 17% 16%
Benefits to contributions: 54% 56%
Maternity Scheme

Return on investment 7% 4%
Growth-in net $s3éts 54% 64%
Operating ratio 6% 5%
Benefits to contributions. 7% 29%
CBHI Scheme '

Operating ratio 21% 28%
Benefits to contributions 109% 146%
Funding Gap (exc¢luding direct 14.3 billion 24.2 billion

Government- Geznt)-




.

Ejo Heza Scheme
Return on investment
Growth in net-assets
Operating ratio

4%
415%
25%

N/A
167%
1923%
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